


INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the members of International Steels Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of International Steels Limited (the Company), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2021, and the statement of profit or loss, the 
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations 
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement 
of financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with 
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the 
state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2021 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.
 
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as 
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information includ-
ed in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

S. No. Key audit matter How the matter was 
addressed in our audit

  
(i) Revenue from contracts with customers
 (Refer note 3.10 and note 24 to the financial 

statements)
 The Company recognizes revenue from the 

sale of cold rolled, galvanized and colour 
coated steel coils and sheets to domestic as 
well as export customers when the perfor-
mance obligation is satisfied by transferring 
control of a promised good to the customer. 
During the year, net sales to the domestic 
and export customers have increased signifi-
cantly by 48.2% and 31.8%, respectively, 
which is substantially due to increase in 
international steel prices.

 We considered revenue recognition as a key 
audit matter due to revenue being one of the 
key performance indicators of the Company 
and for the year revenue has increased 
significantly as compared to the last year. In 
addition, revenue was also considered as an 
area of significant audit risk as part of the 
audit process. 

 How the matter was addressed in our 
audit

 Our audit procedures amongst others includ-
ed the following:

 - evaluated management controls over 
revenue and checked their validation;

 - performed verification of sales with under-
lying documentation including gate pass, 
delivery order and invoice;

 - performed cut-off procedures on sample 
basis to ensure sales has been recorded in 
the correct period;

 - verified that sales prices are negotiated 
and approved by appropriate authority;

 - recalculated the commission as per 
Company’s policy and verified related 
distribution expenses; and

 - ensured that presentation and disclosures 
related to revenue are being addressed 
appropriately.

Following is the Key audit matter
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the prepa-
ration of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease opera-
tions, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstate-
ment resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclo-
sures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical require-
ments regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communi-
cated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, 
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have 
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the 
books of account and returns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose 
of the Company’s business; and

 

(d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by 
the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020, were audited by another auditor-
who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on September 06, 2020.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is 
Syed Muhammad Hasnain.

A.F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi.
Date: September 06, 2021
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the prepa-
ration of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease opera-
tions, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstate-
ment resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclo-
sures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical require-
ments regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communi-
cated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, 
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have 
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the 
books of account and returns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose 
of the Company’s business; and

 

(d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by 
the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020, were audited by another auditor-
who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on September 06, 2020.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is 
Syed Muhammad Hasnain.

A.F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi.
Date: September 06, 2021
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Nihal Cassim
Director & Chairman

Board Audit Committee

Mujtaba Hussain
Chief Financial

Officer

Yousuf H. Mirza
Chief Executive

Officer

 Note 2021 2020

RR  
Property, plant and equipment  4 19,179,617 20,638,354
Right-of-use assets  5.1 19,318 49,377
Intangible assets  6 885 1,197
Long term deposit with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited   100 100
        19,199,920 20,689,028
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares  7   676,682 668,960 
Stock-in-trade  8   17,081,369 15,132,206 
Trade debts  9  939,845  1,015,744 
Receivable from K-Electric Limited (KE)   26,920 39,393 
Advances, trade deposits and prepayments  10   1,925,675 135,604 
Staff retirement benefits  11   -  7,238 
Sales tax receivable   1,576,621 4,033,659 
Taxation - net  12   - 1,033,184 
Cash and bank balances  13   292,511 106,196 
         22,519,623 22,172,184 
TOTAL ASSETS   41,719,543  42,861,212 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital     
 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital  14  4,350,000 4,350,000 
Revenue reserve     
 Unappropriated profit    13,317,354  7,121,607 
Capital reserve     
 Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment  15  1,220,286 1,254,208 

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY   18,887,640 12,725,815 
LIABILITIES    
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES     
Long term financing - secured  16  3,730,861 5,023,812 
Deferred income - Government grant  17  1,018 7,295 
Gas Infrastructure Development Cess  18  708,956 -   
Deferred taxation - net  19  2,031,997 1,499,446 
Lease liabilities  5.2   1,929 38,098 
         6,474,761  6,568,651 
CURRENT LIABILITIES      
Trade and other payables  20  6,587,651 8,932,354 
Contract liabilities  21  1,277,439 1,377,396 
Short term borrowings - secured  22  6,796,345 11,520,404 
Unclaimed dividend    8,798 8,433 
Current portion of long term financing - secured  16  1,462,435 1,487,634 
Current portion of lease liabilities  5.2   20,734 16,755 
Taxation - net  12   125,012  -   
Accrued mark-up   78,728 223,770 
         16,357,142 23,566,746
TOTAL LIABILITIES   22,831,903 30,135,397 
CONTINGENCY AND COMMITMENTS  23  
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    41,719,543  42,861,212

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.    
        

(Rupees in ‘000)

30 June 30 June

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2021
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The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Earnings per share - basic and diluted  32 17.16 1.14

(Rupees in ‘000)

(Rupees)

Nihal Cassim
Director & Chairman

Board Audit Committee

Mujtaba Hussain
Chief Financial

Officer

Yousuf H. Mirza
Chief Executive

Officer

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
  Note  2021 2020 

Revenue from contracts with customers  24 69,796,240 48,081,937
Cost of sales  25 (56,304,367) (43,869,080)
Gross profit   13,491,873 4,212,857

Selling and distribution expenses  26 (1,062,996) (894,334)
Administrative expenses  27 (361,519) (262,811)
        (1,424,515) (1,157,145)

Operating profit   12,067,358 3,055,712

Finance cost  28 (811,931) (2,314,807)
Other operating charges  29 (1,276,659) (334,257)
        (2,088,590) (2,649,064)

Other income  30 315,833 35,523
Profit before tax   10,294,601 442,171

Income tax (expense) / credit  31 (2,828,270) 52,680
Profit for the year   7,466,331 494,851
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  Note  2021 2020 

Profit for the year   7,466,331  494,851 

Other comprehensive income for the year

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit or loss 
Remeasurements of staff retirement benefits  11.2.10 696 7,316
Related deferred tax charge for the year   (202) (2,122)

Other comprehensive income for the year - net of tax   494 5,194

Total comprehensive income for the year   7,466,825  500,045 

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

(Rupees in ‘000)

Nihal Cassim
Director & Chairman

Board Audit Committee

Mujtaba Hussain
Chief Financial

Officer

Yousuf H. Mirza
Chief Executive

Officer

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
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1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 International Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated on September 03, 2007 as a public unlisted 

company limited by shares under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is 
domiciled in the province of Sindh. The Company was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on June 
01, 2011. The Company is subsidiary of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company) which holds 
245,055,543 (2020: 245,055,543) shares of the Company as at June 30, 2021 representing 56.3% (2020: 
56.3%) of the shareholding of the Company.

 The net assets of the Steel Project Undertaking of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company), 
amounting to Rs. 4,177.167 million determined as at August 23, 2010 (day immediately preceding the 
completion date) in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, were transferred to the Company on August 
24, 2010. In consideration of transferring to and vesting the Steel Project Undertaking in the Company, 
417,716,700 fully paid-up ordinary shares were issued at par value to the Holding Company. 

 The primary activity of the Company is the business of manufacturing of cold rolled, galvanized and colour 
coated steel coils and sheets. The Company commenced commercial operations on January 01, 2011. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 101, Beaumont Plaza, 10 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi 
- 75530.

 The manufacturing facilities of the Company are situated at 399-405, Rehri Road, Landhi Industrial Area, and 
Plot No. LE-73-79,102-103, 112-118, 125-129, Survey No. NC.98, near Arabian Country Club, National 
Industrial Parks (NIP), Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Karachi.  

 The Company has sales offices at following locations: 

 - Chinoy House, 6-Bank Square, Lahore;

 - Office No. 303-A 3rd Floor Evacuee Trust Complex Sector F-5/1 Agha Khan Road, Islamabad; and

 - Office No. 708-A, United Mall, Abdali Road, Multan.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1  Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

-  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of 
IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2  Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the Company's 
liability under defined benefit plan (gratuity) that is determined based on the present value of defined benefit 
obligation less fair value of plan assets, freehold land and buildings thereon that are stated at fair values 
determined by an independent valuer and derivative financial instruments which are stated at fair value.

2.3  Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. All 

amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4  Use of significant estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in 
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or 
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information 
about the judgments made by the management in the application of the accounting policies, that have the most 
significant effect on the amount recognized in these financial statements, assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties with significant risk of material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future 
periods are described in the following notes:

 - Property, plant and equipment (note 3.2)

 - Trade debts, advances and other receivables (note 3.4.2.1)

 - Stores and spares (note 3.5) 

 - Stock-in-trade (note 3.6)

 - Taxation (note 3.7)

 - Staff retirement benefits (note 3.8)

 - Impairment (note 3.12)

 - Provisions (note 3.13)

 - Contingent liabilities (note 3.14)

2.5  Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective 

 There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2020. However, these do 
not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting.

b) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

 There is a standard and certain other amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that will be 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2021. However, 
these are considered either not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company's 
financial statements and operations and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial 
statements.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The summary of significant accounting policies and methods of computations adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements are same as those applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

3.1 Lease liability and Right-of-use assets

 The Company, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying 
assets and lease liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

 At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract 
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 
Company mainly leases properties for its operations. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease 
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently 
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method over 
the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on 
the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any.

 The Company has various lease agreements for head office and sales offices which were previously classified 
by the Company based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership. Under IFRS 16, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all 
the leases i.e. these leases are on statement of financial position.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow 
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and 
conditions. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased 
by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a 
change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be 
exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The corresponding adjustment is 
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

 Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

 - Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

 - Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

 - Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 

 - The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

 - Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

 Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

 - The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

 - Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

 - Any initial direct costs; and 

 - Dismantling costs and Restoration costs.

 The company has not elected to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 
properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

3.2.1 Operating assets and depreciation

 Initial recognition 

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such item can be measured 
reliably.

 Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item 
is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 
management.

 Measurement

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land and buildings) are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land are stated at revalued amounts and buildings on 
freehold land are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if 
any. The costs of property, plant and equipment include:

(a) its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts 
and rebates;

(b) any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

(c) Borrowing costs, if any. 

 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Subsequent expenditure

 Expenditure incurred to replace a significant component of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
items can be measured reliably. All other expenditure (including repairs and normal maintenance) is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss as an expense when it is incurred. 

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on all items except for freehold land is charged on straight line method at the rates specified in 
note 4.1 to the financial statements and is generally recognised in statement of profit or loss.

 Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is available for use up to the month prior to 
disposal. 

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and equipment that is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date.

 Revaluation surplus

 Revaluation of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that 
the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation increase in the 
carrying amount of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is recognized, net of tax, in other 
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as "Revaluation surplus on property, 
plant and equipment" except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset 
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that reverse 
previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the 

remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss. The 
revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders. Each year, the difference 
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss 
and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus to 
retained earnings.

 Gains and losses on disposal

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the statement of profit or loss, and the related surplus on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, if any, is transferred directly to retained earnings.

3.2.2 Capital work-in-progress 

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any and consists of expenditure incurred 
(including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in the course of their construction and 
installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended use.

 Advances paid to suppliers for acquisition of property, plant and equipment including land and building is also 
classified under capital work-in-progress.

3.3 Intangible assets 

 An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the 
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

 Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding one 
year, are recognised as an intangible asset. 

 Indefinite intangible

 These are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

 Definite intangible

 a) These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

 b) These are amortised on straight line basis over its estimated useful life(s) of these assets (refer note 6).

 c) Amortisation on additions during the year is charged from month in which the asset is intended to use, 
whereas no amortisation is charged from the month the asset is disposed-off. 

3.4 Financial instruments

3.4.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

 The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

 - fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

 - measured at amortised cost. 

 A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition.

 Subsequent measurement
Debt investments at 
FVOCI   
           
            

3.4.2 Non-derivative financial assets

 All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and 
receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets 
and include trade debts, deposits, advances, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Company 
derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. 

3.4.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables 

 These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at 
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

3.4.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, 
balances with banks and short term borrowings availed by the Company, which are repayable on demand and 
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.4.3 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the 
respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings, unclaimed / unpaid 
dividend, accrued mark-up and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the financial liabilities 
when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities other than at fair value 
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate 
method. 

3.4.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs 

 Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost, while the difference 
between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.   

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

3.4.3.2 Trade and other payables 

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and 
subsequently measured at amortised costs. 

3.4.3.3 Contract liabilities 

 A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has 
received consideration. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the 
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

3.4.4 Derivative financial instruments - other than hedging

 Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the statement of financial position at 
estimated fair value with corresponding effect to statement of profit or loss. Derivative financial instruments are 
carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative.

3.4.5 Derivative financial instruments - cash flow hedges

 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in fair value 
of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. Any 
ineffective portion of changes in fair value of derivative is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss. 
The amount accumulated in equity is removed therefrom and included in the initial carrying amount of 
non-financial asset upon recognition of non-financial asset.

 The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques. These are 
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative.

3.4.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only 
when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Company 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. The 
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the counter parties.

3.5 Stores and spares

 Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, less provision for 
impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred 
thereon. 

 Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares and is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

3.6 Stock-in-trade

 These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined under the weighted average 
basis. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Raw material in transit comprises invoice value and other charges thereon. 
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business less net 
estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. Scrap and by-product is valued at estimated realisable 
value.

3.7 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income respectively. In making the 
estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income 
tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.
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(Rupees in ‘000)

Balance as at July 01, 2019   4,350,000 7,240,140  1,288,130  12,878,270 

Profit for the year  -       494,851  -       494,851 
Other comprehensive income for the year  -       5,194  -       5,194 
Total comprehensive income for the year  -       500,045  -       500,045
Transferred from revaluation surplus on property, plant
 and equipment on account of incremental depreciation
 - net of tax  - 33,922 (33,922) -

Transactions with owners recorded directly
 in equity - distributions 
Dividend:
- Final dividend @ 15% (Re. 1.50 per share)
 for the year ended June 30, 2019  -       (652,500) -       (652,500)
   -       (652,500) -       (652,500)

Balance as at June 30, 2020  4,350,000 7,121,607  1,254,208  12,725,815 

Profit for the year  -       7,466,331  -       7,466,331 
Other comprehensive income for the year  -       494  -       494 

Total comprehensive income for the year  -       7,466,825  -       7,466,825 

Transferred from revaluation surplus on property, plant
 and equipment on account of incremental depreciation
 - net of tax  -       33,922  (33,922) -      

Transactions with owners recorded directly
 in equity - distributions
Dividend:
- Interim dividend @ 30% (Rs. 3.00 per share)
 for the year ended June 30, 2021  -       (1,305,000) -       (1,305,000)
   -       (1,305,000) -       (1,305,000)

Balances as at June 30, 2021  4,350,000 13,317,354  1,220,286  18,887,640 

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Total

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1

1 2 8



CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations  33  10,111,359  5,197,915 
Finance cost paid    (933,638)  (2,386,955)
Income on bank deposits received    39,613  5,444 
Staff retirement benefits paid  11   (25,158) (23,617)
Payment on account of compensated absences    (11,176)  (9,027)
Income tax paid  12  (1,137,725) (807,473)

Net cash generated from operating activities     8,043,275  1,976,287 
       
  
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment for acquisition of property, plant and equipment  4  (515,360) (2,209,723)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment    31,847  28,791 

Net cash used in investing activities    (483,513) (2,180,932)
       
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long term financing    187,738  713,876 
Repayment of long term financing    (1,512,165) (1,461,144)
Proceeds from / (repayment of) short term borrowings - net    1,374,373  (710,781)
Lease rentals paid    (20,326)  (21,083)
Dividend paid     (1,304,635)  (652,905)

Net cash used in financing activities    (1,275,015) (2,132,037)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    6,284,747  (2,336,682)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year    (8,568,724) (6,232,042)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  34  (2,283,977) (8,568,724)

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.     
    

  Note  2021 2020 
(Rupees in ‘000)

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 International Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated on September 03, 2007 as a public unlisted 

company limited by shares under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is 
domiciled in the province of Sindh. The Company was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on June 
01, 2011. The Company is subsidiary of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company) which holds 
245,055,543 (2020: 245,055,543) shares of the Company as at June 30, 2021 representing 56.3% (2020: 
56.3%) of the shareholding of the Company.

 The net assets of the Steel Project Undertaking of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company), 
amounting to Rs. 4,177.167 million determined as at August 23, 2010 (day immediately preceding the 
completion date) in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, were transferred to the Company on August 
24, 2010. In consideration of transferring to and vesting the Steel Project Undertaking in the Company, 
417,716,700 fully paid-up ordinary shares were issued at par value to the Holding Company. 

 The primary activity of the Company is the business of manufacturing of cold rolled, galvanized and colour 
coated steel coils and sheets. The Company commenced commercial operations on January 01, 2011. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 101, Beaumont Plaza, 10 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi 
- 75530.

 The manufacturing facilities of the Company are situated at 399-405, Rehri Road, Landhi Industrial Area, and 
Plot No. LE-73-79,102-103, 112-118, 125-129, Survey No. NC.98, near Arabian Country Club, National 
Industrial Parks (NIP), Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Karachi.  

 The Company has sales offices at following locations: 

 - Chinoy House, 6-Bank Square, Lahore;

 - Office No. 303-A 3rd Floor Evacuee Trust Complex Sector F-5/1 Agha Khan Road, Islamabad; and

 - Office No. 708-A, United Mall, Abdali Road, Multan.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1  Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

-  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of 
IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2  Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the Company's 
liability under defined benefit plan (gratuity) that is determined based on the present value of defined benefit 
obligation less fair value of plan assets, freehold land and buildings thereon that are stated at fair values 
determined by an independent valuer and derivative financial instruments which are stated at fair value.

2.3  Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. All 

amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4  Use of significant estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in 
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or 
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information 
about the judgments made by the management in the application of the accounting policies, that have the most 
significant effect on the amount recognized in these financial statements, assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties with significant risk of material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future 
periods are described in the following notes:

 - Property, plant and equipment (note 3.2)

 - Trade debts, advances and other receivables (note 3.4.2.1)

 - Stores and spares (note 3.5) 

 - Stock-in-trade (note 3.6)

 - Taxation (note 3.7)

 - Staff retirement benefits (note 3.8)

 - Impairment (note 3.12)

 - Provisions (note 3.13)

 - Contingent liabilities (note 3.14)

2.5  Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective 

 There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2020. However, these do 
not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting.

b) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

 There is a standard and certain other amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that will be 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2021. However, 
these are considered either not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company's 
financial statements and operations and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial 
statements.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The summary of significant accounting policies and methods of computations adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements are same as those applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

3.1 Lease liability and Right-of-use assets

 The Company, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying 
assets and lease liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

 At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract 
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 
Company mainly leases properties for its operations. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease 
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently 
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method over 
the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on 
the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any.

 The Company has various lease agreements for head office and sales offices which were previously classified 
by the Company based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership. Under IFRS 16, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all 
the leases i.e. these leases are on statement of financial position.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow 
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and 
conditions. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased 
by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a 
change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be 
exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The corresponding adjustment is 
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

 Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

 - Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

 - Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

 - Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 

 - The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

 - Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

 Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

 - The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

 - Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

 - Any initial direct costs; and 

 - Dismantling costs and Restoration costs.

 The company has not elected to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 
properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

3.2.1 Operating assets and depreciation

 Initial recognition 

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such item can be measured 
reliably.

 Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item 
is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 
management.

 Measurement

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land and buildings) are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land are stated at revalued amounts and buildings on 
freehold land are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if 
any. The costs of property, plant and equipment include:

(a) its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts 
and rebates;

(b) any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

(c) Borrowing costs, if any. 

 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Subsequent expenditure

 Expenditure incurred to replace a significant component of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
items can be measured reliably. All other expenditure (including repairs and normal maintenance) is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss as an expense when it is incurred. 

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on all items except for freehold land is charged on straight line method at the rates specified in 
note 4.1 to the financial statements and is generally recognised in statement of profit or loss.

 Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is available for use up to the month prior to 
disposal. 

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and equipment that is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date.

 Revaluation surplus

 Revaluation of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that 
the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation increase in the 
carrying amount of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is recognized, net of tax, in other 
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as "Revaluation surplus on property, 
plant and equipment" except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset 
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that reverse 
previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the 

remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss. The 
revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders. Each year, the difference 
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss 
and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus to 
retained earnings.

 Gains and losses on disposal

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the statement of profit or loss, and the related surplus on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, if any, is transferred directly to retained earnings.

3.2.2 Capital work-in-progress 

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any and consists of expenditure incurred 
(including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in the course of their construction and 
installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended use.

 Advances paid to suppliers for acquisition of property, plant and equipment including land and building is also 
classified under capital work-in-progress.

3.3 Intangible assets 

 An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the 
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

 Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding one 
year, are recognised as an intangible asset. 

 Indefinite intangible

 These are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

 Definite intangible

 a) These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

 b) These are amortised on straight line basis over its estimated useful life(s) of these assets (refer note 6).

 c) Amortisation on additions during the year is charged from month in which the asset is intended to use, 
whereas no amortisation is charged from the month the asset is disposed-off. 

3.4 Financial instruments

3.4.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

 The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

 - fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

 - measured at amortised cost. 

 A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition.

 Subsequent measurement
Debt investments at 
FVOCI   
           
            

3.4.2 Non-derivative financial assets

 All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and 
receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets 
and include trade debts, deposits, advances, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Company 
derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. 

3.4.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables 

 These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at 
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

3.4.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, 
balances with banks and short term borrowings availed by the Company, which are repayable on demand and 
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.4.3 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the 
respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings, unclaimed / unpaid 
dividend, accrued mark-up and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the financial liabilities 
when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities other than at fair value 
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate 
method. 

3.4.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs 

 Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost, while the difference 
between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.   

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

3.4.3.2 Trade and other payables 

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and 
subsequently measured at amortised costs. 

3.4.3.3 Contract liabilities 

 A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has 
received consideration. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the 
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

3.4.4 Derivative financial instruments - other than hedging

 Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the statement of financial position at 
estimated fair value with corresponding effect to statement of profit or loss. Derivative financial instruments are 
carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative.

3.4.5 Derivative financial instruments - cash flow hedges

 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in fair value 
of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. Any 
ineffective portion of changes in fair value of derivative is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss. 
The amount accumulated in equity is removed therefrom and included in the initial carrying amount of 
non-financial asset upon recognition of non-financial asset.

 The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques. These are 
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative.

3.4.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only 
when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Company 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. The 
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the counter parties.

3.5 Stores and spares

 Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, less provision for 
impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred 
thereon. 

 Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares and is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

3.6 Stock-in-trade

 These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined under the weighted average 
basis. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Raw material in transit comprises invoice value and other charges thereon. 
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business less net 
estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. Scrap and by-product is valued at estimated realisable 
value.

3.7 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income respectively. In making the 
estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income 
tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.
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1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 International Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated on September 03, 2007 as a public unlisted 

company limited by shares under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is 
domiciled in the province of Sindh. The Company was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on June 
01, 2011. The Company is subsidiary of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company) which holds 
245,055,543 (2020: 245,055,543) shares of the Company as at June 30, 2021 representing 56.3% (2020: 
56.3%) of the shareholding of the Company.

 The net assets of the Steel Project Undertaking of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company), 
amounting to Rs. 4,177.167 million determined as at August 23, 2010 (day immediately preceding the 
completion date) in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, were transferred to the Company on August 
24, 2010. In consideration of transferring to and vesting the Steel Project Undertaking in the Company, 
417,716,700 fully paid-up ordinary shares were issued at par value to the Holding Company. 

 The primary activity of the Company is the business of manufacturing of cold rolled, galvanized and colour 
coated steel coils and sheets. The Company commenced commercial operations on January 01, 2011. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 101, Beaumont Plaza, 10 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi 
- 75530.

 The manufacturing facilities of the Company are situated at 399-405, Rehri Road, Landhi Industrial Area, and 
Plot No. LE-73-79,102-103, 112-118, 125-129, Survey No. NC.98, near Arabian Country Club, National 
Industrial Parks (NIP), Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Karachi.  

 The Company has sales offices at following locations: 

 - Chinoy House, 6-Bank Square, Lahore;

 - Office No. 303-A 3rd Floor Evacuee Trust Complex Sector F-5/1 Agha Khan Road, Islamabad; and

 - Office No. 708-A, United Mall, Abdali Road, Multan.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1  Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

-  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of 
IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2  Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the Company's 
liability under defined benefit plan (gratuity) that is determined based on the present value of defined benefit 
obligation less fair value of plan assets, freehold land and buildings thereon that are stated at fair values 
determined by an independent valuer and derivative financial instruments which are stated at fair value.

2.3  Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. All 

amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4  Use of significant estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in 
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or 
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information 
about the judgments made by the management in the application of the accounting policies, that have the most 
significant effect on the amount recognized in these financial statements, assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties with significant risk of material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future 
periods are described in the following notes:

 - Property, plant and equipment (note 3.2)

 - Trade debts, advances and other receivables (note 3.4.2.1)

 - Stores and spares (note 3.5) 

 - Stock-in-trade (note 3.6)

 - Taxation (note 3.7)

 - Staff retirement benefits (note 3.8)

 - Impairment (note 3.12)

 - Provisions (note 3.13)

 - Contingent liabilities (note 3.14)

2.5  Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective 

 There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2020. However, these do 
not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting.

b) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

 There is a standard and certain other amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that will be 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2021. However, 
these are considered either not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company's 
financial statements and operations and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial 
statements.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The summary of significant accounting policies and methods of computations adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements are same as those applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

3.1 Lease liability and Right-of-use assets

 The Company, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying 
assets and lease liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

 At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract 
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 
Company mainly leases properties for its operations. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease 
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently 
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method over 
the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on 
the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any.

 The Company has various lease agreements for head office and sales offices which were previously classified 
by the Company based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership. Under IFRS 16, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all 
the leases i.e. these leases are on statement of financial position.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow 
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and 
conditions. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased 
by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a 
change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be 
exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The corresponding adjustment is 
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

 Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

 - Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

 - Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

 - Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 

 - The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

 - Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

 Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

 - The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

 - Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

 - Any initial direct costs; and 

 - Dismantling costs and Restoration costs.

 The company has not elected to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 
properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

3.2.1 Operating assets and depreciation

 Initial recognition 

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such item can be measured 
reliably.

 Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item 
is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 
management.

 Measurement

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land and buildings) are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land are stated at revalued amounts and buildings on 
freehold land are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if 
any. The costs of property, plant and equipment include:

(a) its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts 
and rebates;

(b) any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

(c) Borrowing costs, if any. 

 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Subsequent expenditure

 Expenditure incurred to replace a significant component of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
items can be measured reliably. All other expenditure (including repairs and normal maintenance) is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss as an expense when it is incurred. 

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on all items except for freehold land is charged on straight line method at the rates specified in 
note 4.1 to the financial statements and is generally recognised in statement of profit or loss.

 Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is available for use up to the month prior to 
disposal. 

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and equipment that is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date.

 Revaluation surplus

 Revaluation of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that 
the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation increase in the 
carrying amount of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is recognized, net of tax, in other 
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as "Revaluation surplus on property, 
plant and equipment" except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset 
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that reverse 
previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the 

remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss. The 
revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders. Each year, the difference 
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss 
and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus to 
retained earnings.

 Gains and losses on disposal

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the statement of profit or loss, and the related surplus on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, if any, is transferred directly to retained earnings.

3.2.2 Capital work-in-progress 

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any and consists of expenditure incurred 
(including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in the course of their construction and 
installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended use.

 Advances paid to suppliers for acquisition of property, plant and equipment including land and building is also 
classified under capital work-in-progress.

3.3 Intangible assets 

 An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the 
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

 Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding one 
year, are recognised as an intangible asset. 

 Indefinite intangible

 These are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

 Definite intangible

 a) These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

 b) These are amortised on straight line basis over its estimated useful life(s) of these assets (refer note 6).

 c) Amortisation on additions during the year is charged from month in which the asset is intended to use, 
whereas no amortisation is charged from the month the asset is disposed-off. 

3.4 Financial instruments

3.4.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

 The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

 - fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

 - measured at amortised cost. 

 A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition.

 Subsequent measurement
Debt investments at 
FVOCI   
           
            

3.4.2 Non-derivative financial assets

 All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and 
receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets 
and include trade debts, deposits, advances, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Company 
derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. 

3.4.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables 

 These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at 
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

3.4.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, 
balances with banks and short term borrowings availed by the Company, which are repayable on demand and 
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.4.3 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the 
respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings, unclaimed / unpaid 
dividend, accrued mark-up and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the financial liabilities 
when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities other than at fair value 
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate 
method. 

3.4.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs 

 Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost, while the difference 
between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.   

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

3.4.3.2 Trade and other payables 

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and 
subsequently measured at amortised costs. 

3.4.3.3 Contract liabilities 

 A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has 
received consideration. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the 
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

3.4.4 Derivative financial instruments - other than hedging

 Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the statement of financial position at 
estimated fair value with corresponding effect to statement of profit or loss. Derivative financial instruments are 
carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative.

3.4.5 Derivative financial instruments - cash flow hedges

 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in fair value 
of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. Any 
ineffective portion of changes in fair value of derivative is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss. 
The amount accumulated in equity is removed therefrom and included in the initial carrying amount of 
non-financial asset upon recognition of non-financial asset.

 The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques. These are 
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative.

3.4.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only 
when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Company 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. The 
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the counter parties.

3.5 Stores and spares

 Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, less provision for 
impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred 
thereon. 

 Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares and is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

3.6 Stock-in-trade

 These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined under the weighted average 
basis. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Raw material in transit comprises invoice value and other charges thereon. 
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business less net 
estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. Scrap and by-product is valued at estimated realisable 
value.

3.7 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income respectively. In making the 
estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income 
tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.
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1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 International Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated on September 03, 2007 as a public unlisted 

company limited by shares under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is 
domiciled in the province of Sindh. The Company was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on June 
01, 2011. The Company is subsidiary of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company) which holds 
245,055,543 (2020: 245,055,543) shares of the Company as at June 30, 2021 representing 56.3% (2020: 
56.3%) of the shareholding of the Company.

 The net assets of the Steel Project Undertaking of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company), 
amounting to Rs. 4,177.167 million determined as at August 23, 2010 (day immediately preceding the 
completion date) in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, were transferred to the Company on August 
24, 2010. In consideration of transferring to and vesting the Steel Project Undertaking in the Company, 
417,716,700 fully paid-up ordinary shares were issued at par value to the Holding Company. 

 The primary activity of the Company is the business of manufacturing of cold rolled, galvanized and colour 
coated steel coils and sheets. The Company commenced commercial operations on January 01, 2011. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 101, Beaumont Plaza, 10 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi 
- 75530.

 The manufacturing facilities of the Company are situated at 399-405, Rehri Road, Landhi Industrial Area, and 
Plot No. LE-73-79,102-103, 112-118, 125-129, Survey No. NC.98, near Arabian Country Club, National 
Industrial Parks (NIP), Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Karachi.  

 The Company has sales offices at following locations: 

 - Chinoy House, 6-Bank Square, Lahore;

 - Office No. 303-A 3rd Floor Evacuee Trust Complex Sector F-5/1 Agha Khan Road, Islamabad; and

 - Office No. 708-A, United Mall, Abdali Road, Multan.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1  Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

-  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of 
IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2  Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the Company's 
liability under defined benefit plan (gratuity) that is determined based on the present value of defined benefit 
obligation less fair value of plan assets, freehold land and buildings thereon that are stated at fair values 
determined by an independent valuer and derivative financial instruments which are stated at fair value.

2.3  Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. All 

amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4  Use of significant estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in 
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or 
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information 
about the judgments made by the management in the application of the accounting policies, that have the most 
significant effect on the amount recognized in these financial statements, assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties with significant risk of material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future 
periods are described in the following notes:

 - Property, plant and equipment (note 3.2)

 - Trade debts, advances and other receivables (note 3.4.2.1)

 - Stores and spares (note 3.5) 

 - Stock-in-trade (note 3.6)

 - Taxation (note 3.7)

 - Staff retirement benefits (note 3.8)

 - Impairment (note 3.12)

 - Provisions (note 3.13)

 - Contingent liabilities (note 3.14)

2.5  Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective 

 There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2020. However, these do 
not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting.

b) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

 There is a standard and certain other amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that will be 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2021. However, 
these are considered either not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company's 
financial statements and operations and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial 
statements.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The summary of significant accounting policies and methods of computations adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements are same as those applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

3.1 Lease liability and Right-of-use assets

 The Company, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying 
assets and lease liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

 At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract 
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 
Company mainly leases properties for its operations. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease 
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently 
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method over 
the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on 
the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any.

 The Company has various lease agreements for head office and sales offices which were previously classified 
by the Company based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership. Under IFRS 16, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all 
the leases i.e. these leases are on statement of financial position.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow 
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and 
conditions. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased 
by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a 
change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be 
exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The corresponding adjustment is 
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

 Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

 - Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

 - Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

 - Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 

 - The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

 - Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

 Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

 - The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

 - Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

 - Any initial direct costs; and 

 - Dismantling costs and Restoration costs.

 The company has not elected to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 
properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

3.2.1 Operating assets and depreciation

 Initial recognition 

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such item can be measured 
reliably.

 Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item 
is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 
management.

 Measurement

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land and buildings) are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land are stated at revalued amounts and buildings on 
freehold land are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if 
any. The costs of property, plant and equipment include:

(a) its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts 
and rebates;

(b) any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

(c) Borrowing costs, if any. 

 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Subsequent expenditure

 Expenditure incurred to replace a significant component of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
items can be measured reliably. All other expenditure (including repairs and normal maintenance) is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss as an expense when it is incurred. 

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on all items except for freehold land is charged on straight line method at the rates specified in 
note 4.1 to the financial statements and is generally recognised in statement of profit or loss.

 Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is available for use up to the month prior to 
disposal. 

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and equipment that is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date.

 Revaluation surplus

 Revaluation of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that 
the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation increase in the 
carrying amount of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is recognized, net of tax, in other 
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as "Revaluation surplus on property, 
plant and equipment" except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset 
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that reverse 
previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the 

remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss. The 
revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders. Each year, the difference 
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss 
and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus to 
retained earnings.

 Gains and losses on disposal

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the statement of profit or loss, and the related surplus on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, if any, is transferred directly to retained earnings.

3.2.2 Capital work-in-progress 

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any and consists of expenditure incurred 
(including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in the course of their construction and 
installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended use.

 Advances paid to suppliers for acquisition of property, plant and equipment including land and building is also 
classified under capital work-in-progress.

3.3 Intangible assets 

 An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the 
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

 Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding one 
year, are recognised as an intangible asset. 

 Indefinite intangible

 These are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

 Definite intangible

 a) These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

 b) These are amortised on straight line basis over its estimated useful life(s) of these assets (refer note 6).

 c) Amortisation on additions during the year is charged from month in which the asset is intended to use, 
whereas no amortisation is charged from the month the asset is disposed-off. 

3.4 Financial instruments

3.4.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

 The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

 - fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

 - measured at amortised cost. 

 A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition.

 Subsequent measurement
Debt investments at 
FVOCI   
           
            

3.4.2 Non-derivative financial assets

 All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and 
receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets 
and include trade debts, deposits, advances, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Company 
derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. 

3.4.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables 

 These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at 
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

3.4.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, 
balances with banks and short term borrowings availed by the Company, which are repayable on demand and 
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.4.3 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the 
respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings, unclaimed / unpaid 
dividend, accrued mark-up and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the financial liabilities 
when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities other than at fair value 
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate 
method. 

3.4.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs 

 Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost, while the difference 
between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.   

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

3.4.3.2 Trade and other payables 

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and 
subsequently measured at amortised costs. 

3.4.3.3 Contract liabilities 

 A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has 
received consideration. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the 
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

3.4.4 Derivative financial instruments - other than hedging

 Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the statement of financial position at 
estimated fair value with corresponding effect to statement of profit or loss. Derivative financial instruments are 
carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative.

3.4.5 Derivative financial instruments - cash flow hedges

 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in fair value 
of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. Any 
ineffective portion of changes in fair value of derivative is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss. 
The amount accumulated in equity is removed therefrom and included in the initial carrying amount of 
non-financial asset upon recognition of non-financial asset.

 The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques. These are 
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative.

3.4.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only 
when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Company 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. The 
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the counter parties.

3.5 Stores and spares

 Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, less provision for 
impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred 
thereon. 

 Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares and is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

3.6 Stock-in-trade

 These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined under the weighted average 
basis. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Raw material in transit comprises invoice value and other charges thereon. 
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business less net 
estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. Scrap and by-product is valued at estimated realisable 
value.

3.7 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income respectively. In making the 
estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income 
tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.
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1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 International Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated on September 03, 2007 as a public unlisted 

company limited by shares under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is 
domiciled in the province of Sindh. The Company was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on June 
01, 2011. The Company is subsidiary of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company) which holds 
245,055,543 (2020: 245,055,543) shares of the Company as at June 30, 2021 representing 56.3% (2020: 
56.3%) of the shareholding of the Company.

 The net assets of the Steel Project Undertaking of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company), 
amounting to Rs. 4,177.167 million determined as at August 23, 2010 (day immediately preceding the 
completion date) in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, were transferred to the Company on August 
24, 2010. In consideration of transferring to and vesting the Steel Project Undertaking in the Company, 
417,716,700 fully paid-up ordinary shares were issued at par value to the Holding Company. 

 The primary activity of the Company is the business of manufacturing of cold rolled, galvanized and colour 
coated steel coils and sheets. The Company commenced commercial operations on January 01, 2011. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 101, Beaumont Plaza, 10 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi 
- 75530.

 The manufacturing facilities of the Company are situated at 399-405, Rehri Road, Landhi Industrial Area, and 
Plot No. LE-73-79,102-103, 112-118, 125-129, Survey No. NC.98, near Arabian Country Club, National 
Industrial Parks (NIP), Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Karachi.  

 The Company has sales offices at following locations: 

 - Chinoy House, 6-Bank Square, Lahore;

 - Office No. 303-A 3rd Floor Evacuee Trust Complex Sector F-5/1 Agha Khan Road, Islamabad; and

 - Office No. 708-A, United Mall, Abdali Road, Multan.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1  Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

-  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of 
IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2  Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the Company's 
liability under defined benefit plan (gratuity) that is determined based on the present value of defined benefit 
obligation less fair value of plan assets, freehold land and buildings thereon that are stated at fair values 
determined by an independent valuer and derivative financial instruments which are stated at fair value.

2.3  Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. All 

amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4  Use of significant estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in 
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or 
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information 
about the judgments made by the management in the application of the accounting policies, that have the most 
significant effect on the amount recognized in these financial statements, assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties with significant risk of material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future 
periods are described in the following notes:

 - Property, plant and equipment (note 3.2)

 - Trade debts, advances and other receivables (note 3.4.2.1)

 - Stores and spares (note 3.5) 

 - Stock-in-trade (note 3.6)

 - Taxation (note 3.7)

 - Staff retirement benefits (note 3.8)

 - Impairment (note 3.12)

 - Provisions (note 3.13)

 - Contingent liabilities (note 3.14)

2.5  Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective 

 There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2020. However, these do 
not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting.

b) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

 There is a standard and certain other amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that will be 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2021. However, 
these are considered either not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company's 
financial statements and operations and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial 
statements.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The summary of significant accounting policies and methods of computations adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements are same as those applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

3.1 Lease liability and Right-of-use assets

 The Company, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying 
assets and lease liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

 At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract 
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 
Company mainly leases properties for its operations. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease 
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently 
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method over 
the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on 
the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any.

 The Company has various lease agreements for head office and sales offices which were previously classified 
by the Company based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership. Under IFRS 16, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all 
the leases i.e. these leases are on statement of financial position.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow 
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and 
conditions. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased 
by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a 
change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be 
exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The corresponding adjustment is 
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

 Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

 - Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

 - Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

 - Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 

 - The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

 - Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

 Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

 - The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

 - Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

 - Any initial direct costs; and 

 - Dismantling costs and Restoration costs.

 The company has not elected to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 
properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

3.2.1 Operating assets and depreciation

 Initial recognition 

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such item can be measured 
reliably.

 Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item 
is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 
management.

 Measurement

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land and buildings) are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land are stated at revalued amounts and buildings on 
freehold land are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if 
any. The costs of property, plant and equipment include:

(a) its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts 
and rebates;

(b) any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

(c) Borrowing costs, if any. 

 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Subsequent expenditure

 Expenditure incurred to replace a significant component of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
items can be measured reliably. All other expenditure (including repairs and normal maintenance) is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss as an expense when it is incurred. 

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on all items except for freehold land is charged on straight line method at the rates specified in 
note 4.1 to the financial statements and is generally recognised in statement of profit or loss.

 Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is available for use up to the month prior to 
disposal. 

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and equipment that is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date.

 Revaluation surplus

 Revaluation of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that 
the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation increase in the 
carrying amount of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is recognized, net of tax, in other 
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as "Revaluation surplus on property, 
plant and equipment" except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset 
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that reverse 
previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the 

remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss. The 
revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders. Each year, the difference 
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss 
and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus to 
retained earnings.

 Gains and losses on disposal

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the statement of profit or loss, and the related surplus on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, if any, is transferred directly to retained earnings.

3.2.2 Capital work-in-progress 

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any and consists of expenditure incurred 
(including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in the course of their construction and 
installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended use.

 Advances paid to suppliers for acquisition of property, plant and equipment including land and building is also 
classified under capital work-in-progress.

3.3 Intangible assets 

 An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the 
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

 Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding one 
year, are recognised as an intangible asset. 

 Indefinite intangible

 These are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

 Definite intangible

 a) These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

 b) These are amortised on straight line basis over its estimated useful life(s) of these assets (refer note 6).

 c) Amortisation on additions during the year is charged from month in which the asset is intended to use, 
whereas no amortisation is charged from the month the asset is disposed-off. 

3.4 Financial instruments

3.4.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

 The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

 - fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

 - measured at amortised cost. 

 A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition.

 Subsequent measurement
Debt investments at 
FVOCI   
           
            

3.4.2 Non-derivative financial assets

 All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and 
receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets 
and include trade debts, deposits, advances, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Company 
derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. 

3.4.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables 

 These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at 
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

3.4.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, 
balances with banks and short term borrowings availed by the Company, which are repayable on demand and 
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.4.3 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the 
respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings, unclaimed / unpaid 
dividend, accrued mark-up and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the financial liabilities 
when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities other than at fair value 
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate 
method. 

3.4.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs 

 Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost, while the difference 
between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.   

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

3.4.3.2 Trade and other payables 

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and 
subsequently measured at amortised costs. 

3.4.3.3 Contract liabilities 

 A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has 
received consideration. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the 
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

3.4.4 Derivative financial instruments - other than hedging

 Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the statement of financial position at 
estimated fair value with corresponding effect to statement of profit or loss. Derivative financial instruments are 
carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative.

3.4.5 Derivative financial instruments - cash flow hedges

 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in fair value 
of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. Any 
ineffective portion of changes in fair value of derivative is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss. 
The amount accumulated in equity is removed therefrom and included in the initial carrying amount of 
non-financial asset upon recognition of non-financial asset.

 The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques. These are 
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative.

3.4.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only 
when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Company 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. The 
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the counter parties.

3.5 Stores and spares

 Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, less provision for 
impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred 
thereon. 

 Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares and is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

3.6 Stock-in-trade

 These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined under the weighted average 
basis. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Raw material in transit comprises invoice value and other charges thereon. 
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business less net 
estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. Scrap and by-product is valued at estimated realisable 
value.

3.7 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income respectively. In making the 
estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income 
tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.
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1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 International Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated on September 03, 2007 as a public unlisted 

company limited by shares under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is 
domiciled in the province of Sindh. The Company was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on June 
01, 2011. The Company is subsidiary of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company) which holds 
245,055,543 (2020: 245,055,543) shares of the Company as at June 30, 2021 representing 56.3% (2020: 
56.3%) of the shareholding of the Company.

 The net assets of the Steel Project Undertaking of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company), 
amounting to Rs. 4,177.167 million determined as at August 23, 2010 (day immediately preceding the 
completion date) in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, were transferred to the Company on August 
24, 2010. In consideration of transferring to and vesting the Steel Project Undertaking in the Company, 
417,716,700 fully paid-up ordinary shares were issued at par value to the Holding Company. 

 The primary activity of the Company is the business of manufacturing of cold rolled, galvanized and colour 
coated steel coils and sheets. The Company commenced commercial operations on January 01, 2011. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 101, Beaumont Plaza, 10 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi 
- 75530.

 The manufacturing facilities of the Company are situated at 399-405, Rehri Road, Landhi Industrial Area, and 
Plot No. LE-73-79,102-103, 112-118, 125-129, Survey No. NC.98, near Arabian Country Club, National 
Industrial Parks (NIP), Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Karachi.  

 The Company has sales offices at following locations: 

 - Chinoy House, 6-Bank Square, Lahore;

 - Office No. 303-A 3rd Floor Evacuee Trust Complex Sector F-5/1 Agha Khan Road, Islamabad; and

 - Office No. 708-A, United Mall, Abdali Road, Multan.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1  Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

-  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of 
IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2  Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the Company's 
liability under defined benefit plan (gratuity) that is determined based on the present value of defined benefit 
obligation less fair value of plan assets, freehold land and buildings thereon that are stated at fair values 
determined by an independent valuer and derivative financial instruments which are stated at fair value.

2.3  Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. All 

amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4  Use of significant estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in 
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or 
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information 
about the judgments made by the management in the application of the accounting policies, that have the most 
significant effect on the amount recognized in these financial statements, assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties with significant risk of material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future 
periods are described in the following notes:

 - Property, plant and equipment (note 3.2)

 - Trade debts, advances and other receivables (note 3.4.2.1)

 - Stores and spares (note 3.5) 

 - Stock-in-trade (note 3.6)

 - Taxation (note 3.7)

 - Staff retirement benefits (note 3.8)

 - Impairment (note 3.12)

 - Provisions (note 3.13)

 - Contingent liabilities (note 3.14)

2.5  Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective 

 There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2020. However, these do 
not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting.

b) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

 There is a standard and certain other amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that will be 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2021. However, 
these are considered either not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company's 
financial statements and operations and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial 
statements.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The summary of significant accounting policies and methods of computations adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements are same as those applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

3.1 Lease liability and Right-of-use assets

 The Company, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying 
assets and lease liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

 At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract 
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 
Company mainly leases properties for its operations. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease 
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently 
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method over 
the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on 
the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any.

 The Company has various lease agreements for head office and sales offices which were previously classified 
by the Company based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership. Under IFRS 16, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all 
the leases i.e. these leases are on statement of financial position.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow 
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and 
conditions. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased 
by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a 
change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be 
exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The corresponding adjustment is 
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

 Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

 - Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

 - Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

 - Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 

 - The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

 - Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

 Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

 - The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

 - Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

 - Any initial direct costs; and 

 - Dismantling costs and Restoration costs.

 The company has not elected to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 
properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

3.2.1 Operating assets and depreciation

 Initial recognition 

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such item can be measured 
reliably.

 Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item 
is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 
management.

 Measurement

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land and buildings) are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land are stated at revalued amounts and buildings on 
freehold land are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if 
any. The costs of property, plant and equipment include:

(a) its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts 
and rebates;

(b) any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

(c) Borrowing costs, if any. 

 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Subsequent expenditure

 Expenditure incurred to replace a significant component of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
items can be measured reliably. All other expenditure (including repairs and normal maintenance) is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss as an expense when it is incurred. 

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on all items except for freehold land is charged on straight line method at the rates specified in 
note 4.1 to the financial statements and is generally recognised in statement of profit or loss.

 Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is available for use up to the month prior to 
disposal. 

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and equipment that is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date.

 Revaluation surplus

 Revaluation of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that 
the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation increase in the 
carrying amount of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is recognized, net of tax, in other 
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as "Revaluation surplus on property, 
plant and equipment" except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset 
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that reverse 
previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the 

remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss. The 
revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders. Each year, the difference 
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss 
and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus to 
retained earnings.

 Gains and losses on disposal

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the statement of profit or loss, and the related surplus on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, if any, is transferred directly to retained earnings.

3.2.2 Capital work-in-progress 

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any and consists of expenditure incurred 
(including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in the course of their construction and 
installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended use.

 Advances paid to suppliers for acquisition of property, plant and equipment including land and building is also 
classified under capital work-in-progress.

3.3 Intangible assets 

 An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the 
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

 Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding one 
year, are recognised as an intangible asset. 

 Indefinite intangible

 These are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

 Definite intangible

 a) These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

 b) These are amortised on straight line basis over its estimated useful life(s) of these assets (refer note 6).

 c) Amortisation on additions during the year is charged from month in which the asset is intended to use, 
whereas no amortisation is charged from the month the asset is disposed-off. 

3.4 Financial instruments

3.4.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

 The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

 - fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

 - measured at amortised cost. 

 A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition.

 Subsequent measurement
Debt investments at 
FVOCI   
           
            

3.4.2 Non-derivative financial assets

 All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and 
receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets 
and include trade debts, deposits, advances, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Company 
derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. 

3.4.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables 

 These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at 
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

3.4.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, 
balances with banks and short term borrowings availed by the Company, which are repayable on demand and 
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.4.3 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the 
respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings, unclaimed / unpaid 
dividend, accrued mark-up and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the financial liabilities 
when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities other than at fair value 
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate 
method. 

3.4.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs 

 Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost, while the difference 
between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.   

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

3.4.3.2 Trade and other payables 

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and 
subsequently measured at amortised costs. 

3.4.3.3 Contract liabilities 

 A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has 
received consideration. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the 
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

3.4.4 Derivative financial instruments - other than hedging

 Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the statement of financial position at 
estimated fair value with corresponding effect to statement of profit or loss. Derivative financial instruments are 
carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative.

3.4.5 Derivative financial instruments - cash flow hedges

 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in fair value 
of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. Any 
ineffective portion of changes in fair value of derivative is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss. 
The amount accumulated in equity is removed therefrom and included in the initial carrying amount of 
non-financial asset upon recognition of non-financial asset.

 The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques. These are 
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative.

3.4.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only 
when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Company 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. The 
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the counter parties.

3.5 Stores and spares

 Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, less provision for 
impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred 
thereon. 

 Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares and is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

3.6 Stock-in-trade

 These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined under the weighted average 
basis. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Raw material in transit comprises invoice value and other charges thereon. 
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business less net 
estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. Scrap and by-product is valued at estimated realisable 
value.

3.7 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income respectively. In making the 
estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income 
tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.
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1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 International Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated on September 03, 2007 as a public unlisted 

company limited by shares under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is 
domiciled in the province of Sindh. The Company was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on June 
01, 2011. The Company is subsidiary of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company) which holds 
245,055,543 (2020: 245,055,543) shares of the Company as at June 30, 2021 representing 56.3% (2020: 
56.3%) of the shareholding of the Company.

 The net assets of the Steel Project Undertaking of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company), 
amounting to Rs. 4,177.167 million determined as at August 23, 2010 (day immediately preceding the 
completion date) in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, were transferred to the Company on August 
24, 2010. In consideration of transferring to and vesting the Steel Project Undertaking in the Company, 
417,716,700 fully paid-up ordinary shares were issued at par value to the Holding Company. 

 The primary activity of the Company is the business of manufacturing of cold rolled, galvanized and colour 
coated steel coils and sheets. The Company commenced commercial operations on January 01, 2011. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 101, Beaumont Plaza, 10 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi 
- 75530.

 The manufacturing facilities of the Company are situated at 399-405, Rehri Road, Landhi Industrial Area, and 
Plot No. LE-73-79,102-103, 112-118, 125-129, Survey No. NC.98, near Arabian Country Club, National 
Industrial Parks (NIP), Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Karachi.  

 The Company has sales offices at following locations: 

 - Chinoy House, 6-Bank Square, Lahore;

 - Office No. 303-A 3rd Floor Evacuee Trust Complex Sector F-5/1 Agha Khan Road, Islamabad; and

 - Office No. 708-A, United Mall, Abdali Road, Multan.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1  Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

-  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of 
IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2  Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the Company's 
liability under defined benefit plan (gratuity) that is determined based on the present value of defined benefit 
obligation less fair value of plan assets, freehold land and buildings thereon that are stated at fair values 
determined by an independent valuer and derivative financial instruments which are stated at fair value.

2.3  Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. All 

amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4  Use of significant estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in 
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or 
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information 
about the judgments made by the management in the application of the accounting policies, that have the most 
significant effect on the amount recognized in these financial statements, assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties with significant risk of material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future 
periods are described in the following notes:

 - Property, plant and equipment (note 3.2)

 - Trade debts, advances and other receivables (note 3.4.2.1)

 - Stores and spares (note 3.5) 

 - Stock-in-trade (note 3.6)

 - Taxation (note 3.7)

 - Staff retirement benefits (note 3.8)

 - Impairment (note 3.12)

 - Provisions (note 3.13)

 - Contingent liabilities (note 3.14)

2.5  Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective 

 There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2020. However, these do 
not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting.

b) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

 There is a standard and certain other amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that will be 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2021. However, 
these are considered either not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company's 
financial statements and operations and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial 
statements.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The summary of significant accounting policies and methods of computations adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements are same as those applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

3.1 Lease liability and Right-of-use assets

 The Company, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying 
assets and lease liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

 At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract 
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 
Company mainly leases properties for its operations. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease 
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently 
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method over 
the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on 
the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any.

 The Company has various lease agreements for head office and sales offices which were previously classified 
by the Company based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership. Under IFRS 16, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all 
the leases i.e. these leases are on statement of financial position.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow 
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and 
conditions. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased 
by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a 
change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be 
exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The corresponding adjustment is 
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

 Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

 - Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

 - Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

 - Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 

 - The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

 - Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

 Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

 - The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

 - Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

 - Any initial direct costs; and 

 - Dismantling costs and Restoration costs.

 The company has not elected to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 
properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

3.2.1 Operating assets and depreciation

 Initial recognition 

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such item can be measured 
reliably.

 Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item 
is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 
management.

 Measurement

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land and buildings) are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land are stated at revalued amounts and buildings on 
freehold land are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if 
any. The costs of property, plant and equipment include:

(a) its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts 
and rebates;

(b) any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

(c) Borrowing costs, if any. 

 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Subsequent expenditure

 Expenditure incurred to replace a significant component of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
items can be measured reliably. All other expenditure (including repairs and normal maintenance) is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss as an expense when it is incurred. 

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on all items except for freehold land is charged on straight line method at the rates specified in 
note 4.1 to the financial statements and is generally recognised in statement of profit or loss.

 Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is available for use up to the month prior to 
disposal. 

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and equipment that is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date.

 Revaluation surplus

 Revaluation of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that 
the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation increase in the 
carrying amount of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is recognized, net of tax, in other 
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as "Revaluation surplus on property, 
plant and equipment" except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset 
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that reverse 
previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the 

remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss. The 
revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders. Each year, the difference 
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss 
and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus to 
retained earnings.

 Gains and losses on disposal

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the statement of profit or loss, and the related surplus on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, if any, is transferred directly to retained earnings.

3.2.2 Capital work-in-progress 

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any and consists of expenditure incurred 
(including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in the course of their construction and 
installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended use.

 Advances paid to suppliers for acquisition of property, plant and equipment including land and building is also 
classified under capital work-in-progress.

3.3 Intangible assets 

 An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the 
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

 Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding one 
year, are recognised as an intangible asset. 

 Indefinite intangible

 These are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

 Definite intangible

 a) These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

 b) These are amortised on straight line basis over its estimated useful life(s) of these assets (refer note 6).

 c) Amortisation on additions during the year is charged from month in which the asset is intended to use, 
whereas no amortisation is charged from the month the asset is disposed-off. 

3.4 Financial instruments

3.4.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

 The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

 - fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

 - measured at amortised cost. 

 A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition.

 Subsequent measurement
Debt investments at 
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3.4.2 Non-derivative financial assets

 All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and 
receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets 
and include trade debts, deposits, advances, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Company 
derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. 

3.4.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables 

 These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at 
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

3.4.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, 
balances with banks and short term borrowings availed by the Company, which are repayable on demand and 
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.4.3 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the 
respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings, unclaimed / unpaid 
dividend, accrued mark-up and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the financial liabilities 
when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities other than at fair value 
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate 
method. 

3.4.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs 

 Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost, while the difference 
between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.   

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

3.4.3.2 Trade and other payables 

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and 
subsequently measured at amortised costs. 

3.4.3.3 Contract liabilities 

 A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has 
received consideration. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the 
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

3.4.4 Derivative financial instruments - other than hedging

 Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the statement of financial position at 
estimated fair value with corresponding effect to statement of profit or loss. Derivative financial instruments are 
carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative.

3.4.5 Derivative financial instruments - cash flow hedges

 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in fair value 
of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. Any 
ineffective portion of changes in fair value of derivative is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss. 
The amount accumulated in equity is removed therefrom and included in the initial carrying amount of 
non-financial asset upon recognition of non-financial asset.

 The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques. These are 
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative.

3.4.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only 
when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Company 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. The 
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the counter parties.

3.5 Stores and spares

 Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, less provision for 
impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred 
thereon. 

 Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares and is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

3.6 Stock-in-trade

 These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined under the weighted average 
basis. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Raw material in transit comprises invoice value and other charges thereon. 
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business less net 
estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. Scrap and by-product is valued at estimated realisable 
value.

3.7 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income respectively. In making the 
estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income 
tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income 
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses 
and impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Other net gains  
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. On de-recognition, 
gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified to 
the statement of profit or loss.
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1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 International Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated on September 03, 2007 as a public unlisted 

company limited by shares under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is 
domiciled in the province of Sindh. The Company was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on June 
01, 2011. The Company is subsidiary of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company) which holds 
245,055,543 (2020: 245,055,543) shares of the Company as at June 30, 2021 representing 56.3% (2020: 
56.3%) of the shareholding of the Company.

 The net assets of the Steel Project Undertaking of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company), 
amounting to Rs. 4,177.167 million determined as at August 23, 2010 (day immediately preceding the 
completion date) in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, were transferred to the Company on August 
24, 2010. In consideration of transferring to and vesting the Steel Project Undertaking in the Company, 
417,716,700 fully paid-up ordinary shares were issued at par value to the Holding Company. 

 The primary activity of the Company is the business of manufacturing of cold rolled, galvanized and colour 
coated steel coils and sheets. The Company commenced commercial operations on January 01, 2011. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 101, Beaumont Plaza, 10 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi 
- 75530.

 The manufacturing facilities of the Company are situated at 399-405, Rehri Road, Landhi Industrial Area, and 
Plot No. LE-73-79,102-103, 112-118, 125-129, Survey No. NC.98, near Arabian Country Club, National 
Industrial Parks (NIP), Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Karachi.  

 The Company has sales offices at following locations: 

 - Chinoy House, 6-Bank Square, Lahore;

 - Office No. 303-A 3rd Floor Evacuee Trust Complex Sector F-5/1 Agha Khan Road, Islamabad; and

 - Office No. 708-A, United Mall, Abdali Road, Multan.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1  Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

-  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of 
IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2  Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the Company's 
liability under defined benefit plan (gratuity) that is determined based on the present value of defined benefit 
obligation less fair value of plan assets, freehold land and buildings thereon that are stated at fair values 
determined by an independent valuer and derivative financial instruments which are stated at fair value.

2.3  Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. All 

amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4  Use of significant estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in 
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or 
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information 
about the judgments made by the management in the application of the accounting policies, that have the most 
significant effect on the amount recognized in these financial statements, assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties with significant risk of material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future 
periods are described in the following notes:

 - Property, plant and equipment (note 3.2)

 - Trade debts, advances and other receivables (note 3.4.2.1)

 - Stores and spares (note 3.5) 

 - Stock-in-trade (note 3.6)

 - Taxation (note 3.7)

 - Staff retirement benefits (note 3.8)

 - Impairment (note 3.12)

 - Provisions (note 3.13)

 - Contingent liabilities (note 3.14)

2.5  Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective 

 There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2020. However, these do 
not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting.

b) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

 There is a standard and certain other amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that will be 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2021. However, 
these are considered either not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company's 
financial statements and operations and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial 
statements.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The summary of significant accounting policies and methods of computations adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements are same as those applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

3.1 Lease liability and Right-of-use assets

 The Company, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying 
assets and lease liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

 At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract 
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 
Company mainly leases properties for its operations. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease 
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently 
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method over 
the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on 
the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any.

 The Company has various lease agreements for head office and sales offices which were previously classified 
by the Company based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership. Under IFRS 16, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all 
the leases i.e. these leases are on statement of financial position.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow 
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and 
conditions. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased 
by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a 
change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be 
exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The corresponding adjustment is 
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

 Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

 - Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

 - Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

 - Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 

 - The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

 - Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

 Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

 - The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

 - Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

 - Any initial direct costs; and 

 - Dismantling costs and Restoration costs.

 The company has not elected to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 
properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

3.2.1 Operating assets and depreciation

 Initial recognition 

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such item can be measured 
reliably.

 Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item 
is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 
management.

 Measurement

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land and buildings) are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land are stated at revalued amounts and buildings on 
freehold land are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if 
any. The costs of property, plant and equipment include:

(a) its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts 
and rebates;

(b) any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

(c) Borrowing costs, if any. 

 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Subsequent expenditure

 Expenditure incurred to replace a significant component of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
items can be measured reliably. All other expenditure (including repairs and normal maintenance) is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss as an expense when it is incurred. 

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on all items except for freehold land is charged on straight line method at the rates specified in 
note 4.1 to the financial statements and is generally recognised in statement of profit or loss.

 Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is available for use up to the month prior to 
disposal. 

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and equipment that is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date.

 Revaluation surplus

 Revaluation of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that 
the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation increase in the 
carrying amount of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is recognized, net of tax, in other 
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as "Revaluation surplus on property, 
plant and equipment" except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset 
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that reverse 
previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the 

remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss. The 
revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders. Each year, the difference 
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss 
and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus to 
retained earnings.

 Gains and losses on disposal

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the statement of profit or loss, and the related surplus on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, if any, is transferred directly to retained earnings.

3.2.2 Capital work-in-progress 

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any and consists of expenditure incurred 
(including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in the course of their construction and 
installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended use.

 Advances paid to suppliers for acquisition of property, plant and equipment including land and building is also 
classified under capital work-in-progress.

3.3 Intangible assets 

 An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the 
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

 Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding one 
year, are recognised as an intangible asset. 

 Indefinite intangible

 These are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

 Definite intangible

 a) These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

 b) These are amortised on straight line basis over its estimated useful life(s) of these assets (refer note 6).

 c) Amortisation on additions during the year is charged from month in which the asset is intended to use, 
whereas no amortisation is charged from the month the asset is disposed-off. 

3.4 Financial instruments

3.4.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

 The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

 - fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

 - measured at amortised cost. 

 A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition.

 Subsequent measurement
Debt investments at 
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3.4.2 Non-derivative financial assets

 All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and 
receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets 
and include trade debts, deposits, advances, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Company 
derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. 

3.4.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables 

 These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at 
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

3.4.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, 
balances with banks and short term borrowings availed by the Company, which are repayable on demand and 
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.4.3 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the 
respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings, unclaimed / unpaid 
dividend, accrued mark-up and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the financial liabilities 
when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities other than at fair value 
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate 
method. 

3.4.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs 

 Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost, while the difference 
between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.   

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

3.4.3.2 Trade and other payables 

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and 
subsequently measured at amortised costs. 

3.4.3.3 Contract liabilities 

 A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has 
received consideration. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the 
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

3.4.4 Derivative financial instruments - other than hedging

 Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the statement of financial position at 
estimated fair value with corresponding effect to statement of profit or loss. Derivative financial instruments are 
carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative.

3.4.5 Derivative financial instruments - cash flow hedges

 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in fair value 
of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. Any 
ineffective portion of changes in fair value of derivative is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss. 
The amount accumulated in equity is removed therefrom and included in the initial carrying amount of 
non-financial asset upon recognition of non-financial asset.

 The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques. These are 
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative.

3.4.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only 
when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Company 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. The 
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the counter parties.

3.5 Stores and spares

 Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, less provision for 
impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred 
thereon. 

 Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares and is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

3.6 Stock-in-trade

 These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined under the weighted average 
basis. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Raw material in transit comprises invoice value and other charges thereon. 
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business less net 
estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. Scrap and by-product is valued at estimated realisable 
value.

3.7 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income respectively. In making the 
estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income 
tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised 
as income in the statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents 
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are 
recognised in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the 
statement of profit or loss.

Equity investments at 
FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. 
Interest / markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment, if  
any, are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets 
measured at amortised 
cost

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, 
including any interest / markup or dividend income, are recognised in statement of 
profit or loss.

Financial assets at 
FVTPL
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1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 International Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated on September 03, 2007 as a public unlisted 

company limited by shares under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is 
domiciled in the province of Sindh. The Company was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on June 
01, 2011. The Company is subsidiary of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company) which holds 
245,055,543 (2020: 245,055,543) shares of the Company as at June 30, 2021 representing 56.3% (2020: 
56.3%) of the shareholding of the Company.

 The net assets of the Steel Project Undertaking of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company), 
amounting to Rs. 4,177.167 million determined as at August 23, 2010 (day immediately preceding the 
completion date) in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, were transferred to the Company on August 
24, 2010. In consideration of transferring to and vesting the Steel Project Undertaking in the Company, 
417,716,700 fully paid-up ordinary shares were issued at par value to the Holding Company. 

 The primary activity of the Company is the business of manufacturing of cold rolled, galvanized and colour 
coated steel coils and sheets. The Company commenced commercial operations on January 01, 2011. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 101, Beaumont Plaza, 10 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi 
- 75530.

 The manufacturing facilities of the Company are situated at 399-405, Rehri Road, Landhi Industrial Area, and 
Plot No. LE-73-79,102-103, 112-118, 125-129, Survey No. NC.98, near Arabian Country Club, National 
Industrial Parks (NIP), Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Karachi.  

 The Company has sales offices at following locations: 

 - Chinoy House, 6-Bank Square, Lahore;

 - Office No. 303-A 3rd Floor Evacuee Trust Complex Sector F-5/1 Agha Khan Road, Islamabad; and

 - Office No. 708-A, United Mall, Abdali Road, Multan.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1  Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

-  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of 
IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2  Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the Company's 
liability under defined benefit plan (gratuity) that is determined based on the present value of defined benefit 
obligation less fair value of plan assets, freehold land and buildings thereon that are stated at fair values 
determined by an independent valuer and derivative financial instruments which are stated at fair value.

2.3  Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. All 

amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4  Use of significant estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in 
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or 
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information 
about the judgments made by the management in the application of the accounting policies, that have the most 
significant effect on the amount recognized in these financial statements, assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties with significant risk of material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future 
periods are described in the following notes:

 - Property, plant and equipment (note 3.2)

 - Trade debts, advances and other receivables (note 3.4.2.1)

 - Stores and spares (note 3.5) 

 - Stock-in-trade (note 3.6)

 - Taxation (note 3.7)

 - Staff retirement benefits (note 3.8)

 - Impairment (note 3.12)

 - Provisions (note 3.13)

 - Contingent liabilities (note 3.14)

2.5  Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective 

 There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2020. However, these do 
not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting.

b) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

 There is a standard and certain other amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that will be 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2021. However, 
these are considered either not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company's 
financial statements and operations and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial 
statements.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The summary of significant accounting policies and methods of computations adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements are same as those applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

3.1 Lease liability and Right-of-use assets

 The Company, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying 
assets and lease liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

 At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract 
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 
Company mainly leases properties for its operations. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease 
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently 
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method over 
the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on 
the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any.

 The Company has various lease agreements for head office and sales offices which were previously classified 
by the Company based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership. Under IFRS 16, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all 
the leases i.e. these leases are on statement of financial position.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow 
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and 
conditions. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased 
by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a 
change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be 
exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The corresponding adjustment is 
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

 Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

 - Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

 - Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

 - Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 

 - The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

 - Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

 Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

 - The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

 - Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

 - Any initial direct costs; and 

 - Dismantling costs and Restoration costs.

 The company has not elected to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 
properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

3.2.1 Operating assets and depreciation

 Initial recognition 

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such item can be measured 
reliably.

 Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item 
is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 
management.

 Measurement

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land and buildings) are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land are stated at revalued amounts and buildings on 
freehold land are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if 
any. The costs of property, plant and equipment include:

(a) its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts 
and rebates;

(b) any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

(c) Borrowing costs, if any. 

 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Subsequent expenditure

 Expenditure incurred to replace a significant component of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
items can be measured reliably. All other expenditure (including repairs and normal maintenance) is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss as an expense when it is incurred. 

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on all items except for freehold land is charged on straight line method at the rates specified in 
note 4.1 to the financial statements and is generally recognised in statement of profit or loss.

 Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is available for use up to the month prior to 
disposal. 

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and equipment that is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date.

 Revaluation surplus

 Revaluation of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that 
the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation increase in the 
carrying amount of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is recognized, net of tax, in other 
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as "Revaluation surplus on property, 
plant and equipment" except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset 
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that reverse 
previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the 

remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss. The 
revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders. Each year, the difference 
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss 
and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus to 
retained earnings.

 Gains and losses on disposal

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the statement of profit or loss, and the related surplus on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, if any, is transferred directly to retained earnings.

3.2.2 Capital work-in-progress 

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any and consists of expenditure incurred 
(including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in the course of their construction and 
installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended use.

 Advances paid to suppliers for acquisition of property, plant and equipment including land and building is also 
classified under capital work-in-progress.

3.3 Intangible assets 

 An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the 
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

 Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding one 
year, are recognised as an intangible asset. 

 Indefinite intangible

 These are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

 Definite intangible

 a) These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

 b) These are amortised on straight line basis over its estimated useful life(s) of these assets (refer note 6).

 c) Amortisation on additions during the year is charged from month in which the asset is intended to use, 
whereas no amortisation is charged from the month the asset is disposed-off. 

3.4 Financial instruments

3.4.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

 The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

 - fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

 - measured at amortised cost. 

 A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition.

 Subsequent measurement
Debt investments at 
FVOCI   
           
            

3.4.2 Non-derivative financial assets

 All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and 
receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets 
and include trade debts, deposits, advances, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Company 
derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. 

3.4.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables 

 These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at 
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

3.4.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, 
balances with banks and short term borrowings availed by the Company, which are repayable on demand and 
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.4.3 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the 
respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings, unclaimed / unpaid 
dividend, accrued mark-up and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the financial liabilities 
when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities other than at fair value 
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate 
method. 

3.4.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs 

 Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost, while the difference 
between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.   

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

3.4.3.2 Trade and other payables 

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and 
subsequently measured at amortised costs. 

3.4.3.3 Contract liabilities 

 A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has 
received consideration. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the 
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

3.4.4 Derivative financial instruments - other than hedging

 Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the statement of financial position at 
estimated fair value with corresponding effect to statement of profit or loss. Derivative financial instruments are 
carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative.

3.4.5 Derivative financial instruments - cash flow hedges

 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in fair value 
of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. Any 
ineffective portion of changes in fair value of derivative is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss. 
The amount accumulated in equity is removed therefrom and included in the initial carrying amount of 
non-financial asset upon recognition of non-financial asset.

 The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques. These are 
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative.

3.4.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only 
when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Company 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. The 
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the counter parties.

3.5 Stores and spares

 Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, less provision for 
impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred 
thereon. 

 Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares and is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

3.6 Stock-in-trade

 These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined under the weighted average 
basis. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Raw material in transit comprises invoice value and other charges thereon. 
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business less net 
estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. Scrap and by-product is valued at estimated realisable 
value.

3.7 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income respectively. In making the 
estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income 
tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1
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1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 International Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated on September 03, 2007 as a public unlisted 

company limited by shares under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is 
domiciled in the province of Sindh. The Company was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on June 
01, 2011. The Company is subsidiary of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company) which holds 
245,055,543 (2020: 245,055,543) shares of the Company as at June 30, 2021 representing 56.3% (2020: 
56.3%) of the shareholding of the Company.

 The net assets of the Steel Project Undertaking of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company), 
amounting to Rs. 4,177.167 million determined as at August 23, 2010 (day immediately preceding the 
completion date) in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, were transferred to the Company on August 
24, 2010. In consideration of transferring to and vesting the Steel Project Undertaking in the Company, 
417,716,700 fully paid-up ordinary shares were issued at par value to the Holding Company. 

 The primary activity of the Company is the business of manufacturing of cold rolled, galvanized and colour 
coated steel coils and sheets. The Company commenced commercial operations on January 01, 2011. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 101, Beaumont Plaza, 10 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi 
- 75530.

 The manufacturing facilities of the Company are situated at 399-405, Rehri Road, Landhi Industrial Area, and 
Plot No. LE-73-79,102-103, 112-118, 125-129, Survey No. NC.98, near Arabian Country Club, National 
Industrial Parks (NIP), Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Karachi.  

 The Company has sales offices at following locations: 

 - Chinoy House, 6-Bank Square, Lahore;

 - Office No. 303-A 3rd Floor Evacuee Trust Complex Sector F-5/1 Agha Khan Road, Islamabad; and

 - Office No. 708-A, United Mall, Abdali Road, Multan.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1  Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

-  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of 
IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2  Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the Company's 
liability under defined benefit plan (gratuity) that is determined based on the present value of defined benefit 
obligation less fair value of plan assets, freehold land and buildings thereon that are stated at fair values 
determined by an independent valuer and derivative financial instruments which are stated at fair value.

2.3  Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. All 

amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4  Use of significant estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in 
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or 
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information 
about the judgments made by the management in the application of the accounting policies, that have the most 
significant effect on the amount recognized in these financial statements, assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties with significant risk of material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future 
periods are described in the following notes:

 - Property, plant and equipment (note 3.2)

 - Trade debts, advances and other receivables (note 3.4.2.1)

 - Stores and spares (note 3.5) 

 - Stock-in-trade (note 3.6)

 - Taxation (note 3.7)

 - Staff retirement benefits (note 3.8)

 - Impairment (note 3.12)

 - Provisions (note 3.13)

 - Contingent liabilities (note 3.14)

2.5  Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective 

 There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2020. However, these do 
not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting.

b) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

 There is a standard and certain other amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that will be 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2021. However, 
these are considered either not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company's 
financial statements and operations and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial 
statements.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The summary of significant accounting policies and methods of computations adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements are same as those applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

3.1 Lease liability and Right-of-use assets

 The Company, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying 
assets and lease liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

 At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract 
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 
Company mainly leases properties for its operations. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease 
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently 
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method over 
the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on 
the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any.

 The Company has various lease agreements for head office and sales offices which were previously classified 
by the Company based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership. Under IFRS 16, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all 
the leases i.e. these leases are on statement of financial position.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow 
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and 
conditions. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased 
by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a 
change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be 
exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The corresponding adjustment is 
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

 Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

 - Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

 - Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

 - Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 

 - The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

 - Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

 Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

 - The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

 - Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

 - Any initial direct costs; and 

 - Dismantling costs and Restoration costs.

 The company has not elected to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 
properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

3.2.1 Operating assets and depreciation

 Initial recognition 

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such item can be measured 
reliably.

 Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item 
is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 
management.

 Measurement

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land and buildings) are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land are stated at revalued amounts and buildings on 
freehold land are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if 
any. The costs of property, plant and equipment include:

(a) its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts 
and rebates;

(b) any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

(c) Borrowing costs, if any. 

 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Subsequent expenditure

 Expenditure incurred to replace a significant component of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
items can be measured reliably. All other expenditure (including repairs and normal maintenance) is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss as an expense when it is incurred. 

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on all items except for freehold land is charged on straight line method at the rates specified in 
note 4.1 to the financial statements and is generally recognised in statement of profit or loss.

 Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is available for use up to the month prior to 
disposal. 

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and equipment that is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date.

 Revaluation surplus

 Revaluation of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that 
the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation increase in the 
carrying amount of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is recognized, net of tax, in other 
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as "Revaluation surplus on property, 
plant and equipment" except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset 
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that reverse 
previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the 

remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss. The 
revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders. Each year, the difference 
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss 
and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus to 
retained earnings.

 Gains and losses on disposal

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the statement of profit or loss, and the related surplus on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, if any, is transferred directly to retained earnings.

3.2.2 Capital work-in-progress 

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any and consists of expenditure incurred 
(including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in the course of their construction and 
installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended use.

 Advances paid to suppliers for acquisition of property, plant and equipment including land and building is also 
classified under capital work-in-progress.

3.3 Intangible assets 

 An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the 
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

 Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding one 
year, are recognised as an intangible asset. 

 Indefinite intangible

 These are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

 Definite intangible

 a) These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

 b) These are amortised on straight line basis over its estimated useful life(s) of these assets (refer note 6).

 c) Amortisation on additions during the year is charged from month in which the asset is intended to use, 
whereas no amortisation is charged from the month the asset is disposed-off. 

3.4 Financial instruments

3.4.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

 The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

 - fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

 - measured at amortised cost. 

 A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition.

 Subsequent measurement
Debt investments at 
FVOCI   
           
            

3.4.2 Non-derivative financial assets

 All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and 
receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets 
and include trade debts, deposits, advances, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Company 
derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. 

3.4.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables 

 These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at 
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

3.4.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, 
balances with banks and short term borrowings availed by the Company, which are repayable on demand and 
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.4.3 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the 
respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings, unclaimed / unpaid 
dividend, accrued mark-up and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the financial liabilities 
when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities other than at fair value 
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate 
method. 

3.4.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs 

 Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost, while the difference 
between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.   

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

3.4.3.2 Trade and other payables 

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and 
subsequently measured at amortised costs. 

3.4.3.3 Contract liabilities 

 A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has 
received consideration. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the 
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

3.4.4 Derivative financial instruments - other than hedging

 Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the statement of financial position at 
estimated fair value with corresponding effect to statement of profit or loss. Derivative financial instruments are 
carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative.

3.4.5 Derivative financial instruments - cash flow hedges

 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in fair value 
of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. Any 
ineffective portion of changes in fair value of derivative is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss. 
The amount accumulated in equity is removed therefrom and included in the initial carrying amount of 
non-financial asset upon recognition of non-financial asset.

 The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques. These are 
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative.

3.4.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only 
when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Company 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. The 
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the counter parties.

3.5 Stores and spares

 Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, less provision for 
impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred 
thereon. 

 Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares and is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

3.6 Stock-in-trade

 These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined under the weighted average 
basis. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Raw material in transit comprises invoice value and other charges thereon. 
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business less net 
estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. Scrap and by-product is valued at estimated realisable 
value.

3.7 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income respectively. In making the 
estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income 
tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

 Current tax

 Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable or receivable in 
respect of previous years.  

 Provisions for current taxation is based on taxability of certain income streams of the Company under 
presumptive / final tax regime at the applicable tax rates and remaining income streams chargeable at current 
rate of taxation under the normal tax regime and / or minimum tax liability or alternate corporate tax as 
applicable, after taking into account tax credits and tax rebates available, if any. 

 Deferred tax

 Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary difference between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of 
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date. 

 The Company recognises a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the 
foreseeable future will be available against which the assets can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

3.8 Staff retirement benefits 

3.8.1 Defined benefit plan

 The Company provides gratuity benefits to all its permanent employees who have completed their minimum 
qualifying period of service i.e. three year (except in case of workers where minimum qualifying period of 
service is six months). For executives and officers having total service of over twenty years, the benefit is 
available at one month's basic salary (eligible salary) for each completed year of service. For executives and 
officers having total service of less than twenty years, the benefit is available at half month's basic salary 
(eligible salary) for each completed year of service. For workers, the benefit is available at one month's gross 
salary less conditional allowances (eligible salary) for each completed year of service. The Company's 
obligation is determined through actuarial valuations carried out under the 'Projected Unit Credit Method'. 
Remeasurements which comprise actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding interest) 
are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. 

 The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the 
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the 
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined 
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense 
and current service cost are recognised in statement of profit or loss. The latest actuarial valuation was 
conducted at the reporting date by a qualified professional firm of actuaries.

 The actual return on plan assets represent the difference between the fair value of plan assets at the beginning 
and end of the year and adjusted for contributions and benefits paid.

3.8.2 Defined contribution plan

 The Company provides provident fund benefits to all its officers. Equal contributions are made, both by the 
Company and the employees, at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary and cost of living allowance and the same is 
charged to the statement of profit or loss.

3.8.3 Compensated absences

 The liability for accumulated compensated absences of employees is recognised in the period in which 
employees render service that increases their entitlement to future compensated absences.
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1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 International Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated on September 03, 2007 as a public unlisted 

company limited by shares under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is 
domiciled in the province of Sindh. The Company was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on June 
01, 2011. The Company is subsidiary of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company) which holds 
245,055,543 (2020: 245,055,543) shares of the Company as at June 30, 2021 representing 56.3% (2020: 
56.3%) of the shareholding of the Company.

 The net assets of the Steel Project Undertaking of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company), 
amounting to Rs. 4,177.167 million determined as at August 23, 2010 (day immediately preceding the 
completion date) in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, were transferred to the Company on August 
24, 2010. In consideration of transferring to and vesting the Steel Project Undertaking in the Company, 
417,716,700 fully paid-up ordinary shares were issued at par value to the Holding Company. 

 The primary activity of the Company is the business of manufacturing of cold rolled, galvanized and colour 
coated steel coils and sheets. The Company commenced commercial operations on January 01, 2011. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 101, Beaumont Plaza, 10 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi 
- 75530.

 The manufacturing facilities of the Company are situated at 399-405, Rehri Road, Landhi Industrial Area, and 
Plot No. LE-73-79,102-103, 112-118, 125-129, Survey No. NC.98, near Arabian Country Club, National 
Industrial Parks (NIP), Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Karachi.  

 The Company has sales offices at following locations: 

 - Chinoy House, 6-Bank Square, Lahore;

 - Office No. 303-A 3rd Floor Evacuee Trust Complex Sector F-5/1 Agha Khan Road, Islamabad; and

 - Office No. 708-A, United Mall, Abdali Road, Multan.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1  Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

-  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of 
IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2  Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the Company's 
liability under defined benefit plan (gratuity) that is determined based on the present value of defined benefit 
obligation less fair value of plan assets, freehold land and buildings thereon that are stated at fair values 
determined by an independent valuer and derivative financial instruments which are stated at fair value.

2.3  Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. All 

amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4  Use of significant estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in 
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or 
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information 
about the judgments made by the management in the application of the accounting policies, that have the most 
significant effect on the amount recognized in these financial statements, assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties with significant risk of material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future 
periods are described in the following notes:

 - Property, plant and equipment (note 3.2)

 - Trade debts, advances and other receivables (note 3.4.2.1)

 - Stores and spares (note 3.5) 

 - Stock-in-trade (note 3.6)

 - Taxation (note 3.7)

 - Staff retirement benefits (note 3.8)

 - Impairment (note 3.12)

 - Provisions (note 3.13)

 - Contingent liabilities (note 3.14)

2.5  Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective 

 There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2020. However, these do 
not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting.

b) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

 There is a standard and certain other amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that will be 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2021. However, 
these are considered either not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company's 
financial statements and operations and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial 
statements.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The summary of significant accounting policies and methods of computations adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements are same as those applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

3.1 Lease liability and Right-of-use assets

 The Company, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying 
assets and lease liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

 At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract 
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 
Company mainly leases properties for its operations. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease 
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently 
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method over 
the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on 
the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any.

 The Company has various lease agreements for head office and sales offices which were previously classified 
by the Company based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership. Under IFRS 16, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all 
the leases i.e. these leases are on statement of financial position.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow 
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and 
conditions. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased 
by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a 
change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be 
exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The corresponding adjustment is 
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

 Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

 - Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

 - Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

 - Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 

 - The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

 - Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

 Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

 - The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

 - Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

 - Any initial direct costs; and 

 - Dismantling costs and Restoration costs.

 The company has not elected to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 
properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

3.2.1 Operating assets and depreciation

 Initial recognition 

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such item can be measured 
reliably.

 Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item 
is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 
management.

 Measurement

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land and buildings) are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land are stated at revalued amounts and buildings on 
freehold land are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if 
any. The costs of property, plant and equipment include:

(a) its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts 
and rebates;

(b) any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

(c) Borrowing costs, if any. 

 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Subsequent expenditure

 Expenditure incurred to replace a significant component of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
items can be measured reliably. All other expenditure (including repairs and normal maintenance) is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss as an expense when it is incurred. 

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on all items except for freehold land is charged on straight line method at the rates specified in 
note 4.1 to the financial statements and is generally recognised in statement of profit or loss.

 Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is available for use up to the month prior to 
disposal. 

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and equipment that is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date.

 Revaluation surplus

 Revaluation of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that 
the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation increase in the 
carrying amount of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is recognized, net of tax, in other 
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as "Revaluation surplus on property, 
plant and equipment" except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset 
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that reverse 
previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the 

remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss. The 
revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders. Each year, the difference 
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss 
and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus to 
retained earnings.

 Gains and losses on disposal

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the statement of profit or loss, and the related surplus on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, if any, is transferred directly to retained earnings.

3.2.2 Capital work-in-progress 

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any and consists of expenditure incurred 
(including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in the course of their construction and 
installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended use.

 Advances paid to suppliers for acquisition of property, plant and equipment including land and building is also 
classified under capital work-in-progress.

3.3 Intangible assets 

 An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the 
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

 Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding one 
year, are recognised as an intangible asset. 

 Indefinite intangible

 These are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

 Definite intangible

 a) These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

 b) These are amortised on straight line basis over its estimated useful life(s) of these assets (refer note 6).

 c) Amortisation on additions during the year is charged from month in which the asset is intended to use, 
whereas no amortisation is charged from the month the asset is disposed-off. 

3.4 Financial instruments

3.4.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

 The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

 - fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

 - measured at amortised cost. 

 A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition.

 Subsequent measurement
Debt investments at 
FVOCI   
           
            

3.4.2 Non-derivative financial assets

 All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and 
receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets 
and include trade debts, deposits, advances, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Company 
derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. 

3.4.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables 

 These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at 
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

3.4.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, 
balances with banks and short term borrowings availed by the Company, which are repayable on demand and 
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.4.3 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the 
respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings, unclaimed / unpaid 
dividend, accrued mark-up and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the financial liabilities 
when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities other than at fair value 
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate 
method. 

3.4.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs 

 Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost, while the difference 
between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.   

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

3.4.3.2 Trade and other payables 

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and 
subsequently measured at amortised costs. 

3.4.3.3 Contract liabilities 

 A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has 
received consideration. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the 
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

3.4.4 Derivative financial instruments - other than hedging

 Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the statement of financial position at 
estimated fair value with corresponding effect to statement of profit or loss. Derivative financial instruments are 
carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative.

3.4.5 Derivative financial instruments - cash flow hedges

 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in fair value 
of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. Any 
ineffective portion of changes in fair value of derivative is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss. 
The amount accumulated in equity is removed therefrom and included in the initial carrying amount of 
non-financial asset upon recognition of non-financial asset.

 The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques. These are 
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative.

3.4.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only 
when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Company 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. The 
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the counter parties.

3.5 Stores and spares

 Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, less provision for 
impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred 
thereon. 

 Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares and is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

3.6 Stock-in-trade

 These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined under the weighted average 
basis. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Raw material in transit comprises invoice value and other charges thereon. 
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business less net 
estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. Scrap and by-product is valued at estimated realisable 
value.

3.7 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income respectively. In making the 
estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income 
tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

3.9 Foreign currency transactions and translation

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange approximating those 
prevailing on the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into 
Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange ruling on the reporting date. Exchange differences are included in the 
statement of profit or loss. 

3.10 Revenue recognition

 - Domestic sales are recognised as revenue when invoiced with the transfer of control of goods, which 
coincides with delivery, as this is the point in time that the consideration becomes unconditional, because 
only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

 - Export sales are recognised as revenue when invoiced with the transfer of control of goods, which coincides 
either with the date of bill of lading or upon delivery to customer or its representative, based on terms of 
arrangement.

 - Revenue from power generation plant on account of sales of surplus electricity is recognised on 
transmission of electricity to K-Electric Limited.

 - Toll manufacturing / partial manufacturing income is recognised when related services are rendered.

 No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term of up to 180 days, which 
is consistent with the market practice.

3.11 Income on bank deposits and finance cost 

 The Company's finance income and finance cost includes income on bank deposits and finance cost. Income 
or expense is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

3.12 Impairment

3.12.1 Financial assets

 The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of financial assets 
measured at amortised cost.

 The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which 
are measured at 12-month ECLs:

  -  debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

 -  other debt securities and bank balance for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the 
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

 Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

 The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 - 60 months before June 
30, 2021 or July 1, 2020 respectively and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this 
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on 
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Company has 
identified the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) and the unemployment rate of the countries in which it sells its 
goods to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected 
changes in these factors.

 When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition 
and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant 
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and 
analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including 
forward-looking information.          
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company limited by shares under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is 
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amounting to Rs. 4,177.167 million determined as at August 23, 2010 (day immediately preceding the 
completion date) in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, were transferred to the Company on August 
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 The manufacturing facilities of the Company are situated at 399-405, Rehri Road, Landhi Industrial Area, and 
Plot No. LE-73-79,102-103, 112-118, 125-129, Survey No. NC.98, near Arabian Country Club, National 
Industrial Parks (NIP), Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Karachi.  

 The Company has sales offices at following locations: 

 - Chinoy House, 6-Bank Square, Lahore;

 - Office No. 303-A 3rd Floor Evacuee Trust Complex Sector F-5/1 Agha Khan Road, Islamabad; and

 - Office No. 708-A, United Mall, Abdali Road, Multan.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1  Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

-  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of 
IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2  Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the Company's 
liability under defined benefit plan (gratuity) that is determined based on the present value of defined benefit 
obligation less fair value of plan assets, freehold land and buildings thereon that are stated at fair values 
determined by an independent valuer and derivative financial instruments which are stated at fair value.

2.3  Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. All 

amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4  Use of significant estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in 
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or 
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information 
about the judgments made by the management in the application of the accounting policies, that have the most 
significant effect on the amount recognized in these financial statements, assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties with significant risk of material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future 
periods are described in the following notes:

 - Property, plant and equipment (note 3.2)

 - Trade debts, advances and other receivables (note 3.4.2.1)

 - Stores and spares (note 3.5) 

 - Stock-in-trade (note 3.6)

 - Taxation (note 3.7)

 - Staff retirement benefits (note 3.8)

 - Impairment (note 3.12)

 - Provisions (note 3.13)

 - Contingent liabilities (note 3.14)

2.5  Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective 

 There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2020. However, these do 
not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting.

b) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

 There is a standard and certain other amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that will be 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2021. However, 
these are considered either not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company's 
financial statements and operations and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial 
statements.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The summary of significant accounting policies and methods of computations adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements are same as those applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

3.1 Lease liability and Right-of-use assets

 The Company, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying 
assets and lease liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

 At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract 
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 
Company mainly leases properties for its operations. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease 
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently 
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method over 
the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on 
the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any.

 The Company has various lease agreements for head office and sales offices which were previously classified 
by the Company based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership. Under IFRS 16, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all 
the leases i.e. these leases are on statement of financial position.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow 
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and 
conditions. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased 
by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a 
change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be 
exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The corresponding adjustment is 
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

 Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

 - Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

 - Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

 - Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 

 - The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

 - Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

 Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

 - The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

 - Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

 - Any initial direct costs; and 

 - Dismantling costs and Restoration costs.

 The company has not elected to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 
properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

3.2.1 Operating assets and depreciation

 Initial recognition 

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such item can be measured 
reliably.

 Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item 
is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 
management.

 Measurement

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land and buildings) are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land are stated at revalued amounts and buildings on 
freehold land are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if 
any. The costs of property, plant and equipment include:

(a) its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts 
and rebates;

(b) any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

(c) Borrowing costs, if any. 

 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Subsequent expenditure

 Expenditure incurred to replace a significant component of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
items can be measured reliably. All other expenditure (including repairs and normal maintenance) is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss as an expense when it is incurred. 

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on all items except for freehold land is charged on straight line method at the rates specified in 
note 4.1 to the financial statements and is generally recognised in statement of profit or loss.

 Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is available for use up to the month prior to 
disposal. 

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and equipment that is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date.

 Revaluation surplus

 Revaluation of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that 
the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation increase in the 
carrying amount of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is recognized, net of tax, in other 
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as "Revaluation surplus on property, 
plant and equipment" except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset 
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that reverse 
previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the 

remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss. The 
revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders. Each year, the difference 
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss 
and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus to 
retained earnings.

 Gains and losses on disposal

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the statement of profit or loss, and the related surplus on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, if any, is transferred directly to retained earnings.

3.2.2 Capital work-in-progress 

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any and consists of expenditure incurred 
(including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in the course of their construction and 
installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended use.

 Advances paid to suppliers for acquisition of property, plant and equipment including land and building is also 
classified under capital work-in-progress.

3.3 Intangible assets 

 An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the 
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

 Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding one 
year, are recognised as an intangible asset. 

 Indefinite intangible

 These are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

 Definite intangible

 a) These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

 b) These are amortised on straight line basis over its estimated useful life(s) of these assets (refer note 6).

 c) Amortisation on additions during the year is charged from month in which the asset is intended to use, 
whereas no amortisation is charged from the month the asset is disposed-off. 

3.4 Financial instruments

3.4.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

 The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

 - fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

 - measured at amortised cost. 

 A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition.

 Subsequent measurement
Debt investments at 
FVOCI   
           
            

3.4.2 Non-derivative financial assets

 All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and 
receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets 
and include trade debts, deposits, advances, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Company 
derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. 

3.4.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables 

 These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at 
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

3.4.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, 
balances with banks and short term borrowings availed by the Company, which are repayable on demand and 
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.4.3 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the 
respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings, unclaimed / unpaid 
dividend, accrued mark-up and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the financial liabilities 
when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities other than at fair value 
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate 
method. 

3.4.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs 

 Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost, while the difference 
between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.   

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

3.4.3.2 Trade and other payables 

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and 
subsequently measured at amortised costs. 

3.4.3.3 Contract liabilities 

 A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has 
received consideration. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the 
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

3.4.4 Derivative financial instruments - other than hedging

 Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the statement of financial position at 
estimated fair value with corresponding effect to statement of profit or loss. Derivative financial instruments are 
carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative.

3.4.5 Derivative financial instruments - cash flow hedges

 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in fair value 
of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. Any 
ineffective portion of changes in fair value of derivative is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss. 
The amount accumulated in equity is removed therefrom and included in the initial carrying amount of 
non-financial asset upon recognition of non-financial asset.

 The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques. These are 
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative.

3.4.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only 
when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Company 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. The 
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the counter parties.

3.5 Stores and spares

 Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, less provision for 
impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred 
thereon. 

 Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares and is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

3.6 Stock-in-trade

 These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined under the weighted average 
basis. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Raw material in transit comprises invoice value and other charges thereon. 
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business less net 
estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. Scrap and by-product is valued at estimated realisable 
value.

3.7 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income respectively. In making the 
estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income 
tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

 The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past 
due for a reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over 
the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default 
events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of 
the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the 
maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

 Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount 
of the assets.

 The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations 
of recovery of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes an 
assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable 
expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However, 
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the 
Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

 The adoption of the expected loss approach has not resulted in any material change in impairment provision for 
any financial asset.

 A financial asset is considered irrecoverable (default event) when the counterparty fails to make contractual 
payments within one year of when they fall due.

3.12.2 Non-financial assets

 The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets and inventories 
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such 
indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount, being higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell, 
is estimated. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are 
grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are 
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets. An impairment loss is recognised 
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss.

3.13 Provisions 

 A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are measured 
at the present value of expected expenditure, discounted at a pre-tax rate reflecting current market assessment 
of the time value of money and the risk specific to the obligation. However, provisions are reviewed at each 
reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

3.14 Contingent liabilities

 A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that 
arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 

3.15 Segment reporting

 Segment results that are reported to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO) - the chief operating 
decision maker include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a 
reasonable basis. Unallocated items, if any, comprise mainly corporate assets, head office expenses, and tax 
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1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 International Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated on September 03, 2007 as a public unlisted 

company limited by shares under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is 
domiciled in the province of Sindh. The Company was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on June 
01, 2011. The Company is subsidiary of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company) which holds 
245,055,543 (2020: 245,055,543) shares of the Company as at June 30, 2021 representing 56.3% (2020: 
56.3%) of the shareholding of the Company.

 The net assets of the Steel Project Undertaking of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company), 
amounting to Rs. 4,177.167 million determined as at August 23, 2010 (day immediately preceding the 
completion date) in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, were transferred to the Company on August 
24, 2010. In consideration of transferring to and vesting the Steel Project Undertaking in the Company, 
417,716,700 fully paid-up ordinary shares were issued at par value to the Holding Company. 

 The primary activity of the Company is the business of manufacturing of cold rolled, galvanized and colour 
coated steel coils and sheets. The Company commenced commercial operations on January 01, 2011. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 101, Beaumont Plaza, 10 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi 
- 75530.

 The manufacturing facilities of the Company are situated at 399-405, Rehri Road, Landhi Industrial Area, and 
Plot No. LE-73-79,102-103, 112-118, 125-129, Survey No. NC.98, near Arabian Country Club, National 
Industrial Parks (NIP), Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Karachi.  

 The Company has sales offices at following locations: 

 - Chinoy House, 6-Bank Square, Lahore;

 - Office No. 303-A 3rd Floor Evacuee Trust Complex Sector F-5/1 Agha Khan Road, Islamabad; and

 - Office No. 708-A, United Mall, Abdali Road, Multan.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1  Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

-  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of 
IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2  Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the Company's 
liability under defined benefit plan (gratuity) that is determined based on the present value of defined benefit 
obligation less fair value of plan assets, freehold land and buildings thereon that are stated at fair values 
determined by an independent valuer and derivative financial instruments which are stated at fair value.

2.3  Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. All 

amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4  Use of significant estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in 
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or 
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information 
about the judgments made by the management in the application of the accounting policies, that have the most 
significant effect on the amount recognized in these financial statements, assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties with significant risk of material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future 
periods are described in the following notes:

 - Property, plant and equipment (note 3.2)

 - Trade debts, advances and other receivables (note 3.4.2.1)

 - Stores and spares (note 3.5) 

 - Stock-in-trade (note 3.6)

 - Taxation (note 3.7)

 - Staff retirement benefits (note 3.8)

 - Impairment (note 3.12)

 - Provisions (note 3.13)

 - Contingent liabilities (note 3.14)

2.5  Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective 

 There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2020. However, these do 
not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting.

b) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

 There is a standard and certain other amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that will be 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2021. However, 
these are considered either not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company's 
financial statements and operations and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial 
statements.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The summary of significant accounting policies and methods of computations adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements are same as those applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

3.1 Lease liability and Right-of-use assets

 The Company, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying 
assets and lease liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

 At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract 
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 
Company mainly leases properties for its operations. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease 
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently 
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method over 
the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on 
the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any.

 The Company has various lease agreements for head office and sales offices which were previously classified 
by the Company based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership. Under IFRS 16, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all 
the leases i.e. these leases are on statement of financial position.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow 
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and 
conditions. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased 
by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a 
change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be 
exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The corresponding adjustment is 
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

 Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

 - Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

 - Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

 - Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 

 - The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

 - Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

 Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

 - The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

 - Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

 - Any initial direct costs; and 

 - Dismantling costs and Restoration costs.

 The company has not elected to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 
properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

3.2.1 Operating assets and depreciation

 Initial recognition 

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such item can be measured 
reliably.

 Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item 
is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 
management.

 Measurement

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land and buildings) are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land are stated at revalued amounts and buildings on 
freehold land are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if 
any. The costs of property, plant and equipment include:

(a) its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts 
and rebates;

(b) any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

(c) Borrowing costs, if any. 

 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Subsequent expenditure

 Expenditure incurred to replace a significant component of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
items can be measured reliably. All other expenditure (including repairs and normal maintenance) is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss as an expense when it is incurred. 

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on all items except for freehold land is charged on straight line method at the rates specified in 
note 4.1 to the financial statements and is generally recognised in statement of profit or loss.

 Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is available for use up to the month prior to 
disposal. 

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and equipment that is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date.

 Revaluation surplus

 Revaluation of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that 
the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation increase in the 
carrying amount of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is recognized, net of tax, in other 
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as "Revaluation surplus on property, 
plant and equipment" except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset 
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that reverse 
previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the 

remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss. The 
revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders. Each year, the difference 
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss 
and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus to 
retained earnings.

 Gains and losses on disposal

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the statement of profit or loss, and the related surplus on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, if any, is transferred directly to retained earnings.

3.2.2 Capital work-in-progress 

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any and consists of expenditure incurred 
(including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in the course of their construction and 
installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended use.

 Advances paid to suppliers for acquisition of property, plant and equipment including land and building is also 
classified under capital work-in-progress.

3.3 Intangible assets 

 An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the 
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

 Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding one 
year, are recognised as an intangible asset. 

 Indefinite intangible

 These are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

 Definite intangible

 a) These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

 b) These are amortised on straight line basis over its estimated useful life(s) of these assets (refer note 6).

 c) Amortisation on additions during the year is charged from month in which the asset is intended to use, 
whereas no amortisation is charged from the month the asset is disposed-off. 

3.4 Financial instruments

3.4.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

 The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

 - fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

 - measured at amortised cost. 

 A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition.

 Subsequent measurement
Debt investments at 
FVOCI   
           
            

3.4.2 Non-derivative financial assets

 All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and 
receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets 
and include trade debts, deposits, advances, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Company 
derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. 

3.4.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables 

 These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at 
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

3.4.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, 
balances with banks and short term borrowings availed by the Company, which are repayable on demand and 
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.4.3 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the 
respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings, unclaimed / unpaid 
dividend, accrued mark-up and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the financial liabilities 
when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities other than at fair value 
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate 
method. 

3.4.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs 

 Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost, while the difference 
between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.   

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

3.4.3.2 Trade and other payables 

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and 
subsequently measured at amortised costs. 

3.4.3.3 Contract liabilities 

 A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has 
received consideration. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the 
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

3.4.4 Derivative financial instruments - other than hedging

 Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the statement of financial position at 
estimated fair value with corresponding effect to statement of profit or loss. Derivative financial instruments are 
carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative.

3.4.5 Derivative financial instruments - cash flow hedges

 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in fair value 
of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. Any 
ineffective portion of changes in fair value of derivative is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss. 
The amount accumulated in equity is removed therefrom and included in the initial carrying amount of 
non-financial asset upon recognition of non-financial asset.

 The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques. These are 
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative.

3.4.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only 
when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Company 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. The 
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the counter parties.

3.5 Stores and spares

 Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, less provision for 
impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred 
thereon. 

 Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares and is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

3.6 Stock-in-trade

 These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined under the weighted average 
basis. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Raw material in transit comprises invoice value and other charges thereon. 
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business less net 
estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. Scrap and by-product is valued at estimated realisable 
value.

3.7 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income respectively. In making the 
estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income 
tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

 assets and liabilities. Management has determined that the Company has a single reportable segment and 
therefore it has only presented entity wide disclosures.

 The Company does not consider sale of electricity to K-Electric Limited (KE) as separate reportable segment 
as the power plant of the Company is installed primarily to supply power to its production facilities and currently 
any excess electricity is sold to KE. 

3.16 Dividend and appropriations to / from reserves

 Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders and appropriations to / from reserves are recognised as a 
liability in the period in which these are approved.

3.17 Government grants

 Government grants are transfers of resources to an entity by a government entity in return for compliance with 
certain past or future conditions related to the entity's operating activities - e.g. a government subsidy. The 
definition of "government" refers to governments, government agencies and similar bodies, whether local, 
national or international.

 The Company recognises government grants when there is reasonable assurance that grants will be received 
and the Company will be able to comply with conditions associated with Grants.

 Government grants are recognised at fair value, as deferred income, when there is reasonable assurance that 
the grants will be received and the Company will be able to comply with the conditions associated with the 
grants. 

 Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred, are recognized on a systematic basis in the 
income for the year in which the related expenses are recognized. Grants that compensate for the cost of an 
asset are recognized in income on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related asset.

 A loan is initially recognized and subsequently measured in accordance with IFRS 9. IFRS 9 requires loans at 
below-market rates to be initially measured at their fair value - e.g. the present value of the expected future cash 
flows discounted at a market-related interest rate. The benefit that is the government grant is measured as the 
difference between the fair value of the loan on initial recognition and the amount received, which is accounted 
for according to the nature of the grant.

4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 Operating assets  4.1   18,384,801  19,869,409
 Capital work-in-progress  4.2  150,993 107,338
 Stores and spares held for capital expenditure  4.3  643,823 661,607
     19,179,617 20,638,354

  Note  2021 2020 
(Rupees in ‘000)

A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1

1 4 0



1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 International Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated on September 03, 2007 as a public unlisted 

company limited by shares under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is 
domiciled in the province of Sindh. The Company was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on June 
01, 2011. The Company is subsidiary of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company) which holds 
245,055,543 (2020: 245,055,543) shares of the Company as at June 30, 2021 representing 56.3% (2020: 
56.3%) of the shareholding of the Company.

 The net assets of the Steel Project Undertaking of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company), 
amounting to Rs. 4,177.167 million determined as at August 23, 2010 (day immediately preceding the 
completion date) in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, were transferred to the Company on August 
24, 2010. In consideration of transferring to and vesting the Steel Project Undertaking in the Company, 
417,716,700 fully paid-up ordinary shares were issued at par value to the Holding Company. 

 The primary activity of the Company is the business of manufacturing of cold rolled, galvanized and colour 
coated steel coils and sheets. The Company commenced commercial operations on January 01, 2011. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 101, Beaumont Plaza, 10 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi 
- 75530.

 The manufacturing facilities of the Company are situated at 399-405, Rehri Road, Landhi Industrial Area, and 
Plot No. LE-73-79,102-103, 112-118, 125-129, Survey No. NC.98, near Arabian Country Club, National 
Industrial Parks (NIP), Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Karachi.  

 The Company has sales offices at following locations: 

 - Chinoy House, 6-Bank Square, Lahore;

 - Office No. 303-A 3rd Floor Evacuee Trust Complex Sector F-5/1 Agha Khan Road, Islamabad; and

 - Office No. 708-A, United Mall, Abdali Road, Multan.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1  Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

-  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of 
IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2  Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the Company's 
liability under defined benefit plan (gratuity) that is determined based on the present value of defined benefit 
obligation less fair value of plan assets, freehold land and buildings thereon that are stated at fair values 
determined by an independent valuer and derivative financial instruments which are stated at fair value.

2.3  Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. All 

amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4  Use of significant estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in 
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or 
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information 
about the judgments made by the management in the application of the accounting policies, that have the most 
significant effect on the amount recognized in these financial statements, assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties with significant risk of material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future 
periods are described in the following notes:

 - Property, plant and equipment (note 3.2)

 - Trade debts, advances and other receivables (note 3.4.2.1)

 - Stores and spares (note 3.5) 

 - Stock-in-trade (note 3.6)

 - Taxation (note 3.7)

 - Staff retirement benefits (note 3.8)

 - Impairment (note 3.12)

 - Provisions (note 3.13)

 - Contingent liabilities (note 3.14)

2.5  Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective 

 There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2020. However, these do 
not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting.

b) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

 There is a standard and certain other amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that will be 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2021. However, 
these are considered either not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company's 
financial statements and operations and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial 
statements.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The summary of significant accounting policies and methods of computations adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements are same as those applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

3.1 Lease liability and Right-of-use assets

 The Company, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying 
assets and lease liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

 At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract 
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 
Company mainly leases properties for its operations. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease 
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently 
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method over 
the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on 
the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any.

 The Company has various lease agreements for head office and sales offices which were previously classified 
by the Company based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership. Under IFRS 16, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all 
the leases i.e. these leases are on statement of financial position.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow 
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and 
conditions. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased 
by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a 
change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be 
exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The corresponding adjustment is 
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

 Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

 - Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

 - Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

 - Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 

 - The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

 - Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

 Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

 - The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

 - Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

 - Any initial direct costs; and 

 - Dismantling costs and Restoration costs.

 The company has not elected to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 
properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

3.2.1 Operating assets and depreciation

 Initial recognition 

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such item can be measured 
reliably.

 Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item 
is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 
management.

 Measurement

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land and buildings) are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land are stated at revalued amounts and buildings on 
freehold land are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if 
any. The costs of property, plant and equipment include:

(a) its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts 
and rebates;

(b) any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

(c) Borrowing costs, if any. 

 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Subsequent expenditure

 Expenditure incurred to replace a significant component of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
items can be measured reliably. All other expenditure (including repairs and normal maintenance) is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss as an expense when it is incurred. 

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on all items except for freehold land is charged on straight line method at the rates specified in 
note 4.1 to the financial statements and is generally recognised in statement of profit or loss.

 Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is available for use up to the month prior to 
disposal. 

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and equipment that is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date.

 Revaluation surplus

 Revaluation of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that 
the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation increase in the 
carrying amount of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is recognized, net of tax, in other 
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as "Revaluation surplus on property, 
plant and equipment" except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset 
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that reverse 
previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the 

remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss. The 
revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders. Each year, the difference 
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss 
and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus to 
retained earnings.

 Gains and losses on disposal

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the statement of profit or loss, and the related surplus on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, if any, is transferred directly to retained earnings.

3.2.2 Capital work-in-progress 

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any and consists of expenditure incurred 
(including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in the course of their construction and 
installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended use.

 Advances paid to suppliers for acquisition of property, plant and equipment including land and building is also 
classified under capital work-in-progress.

3.3 Intangible assets 

 An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the 
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

 Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding one 
year, are recognised as an intangible asset. 

 Indefinite intangible

 These are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

 Definite intangible

 a) These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

 b) These are amortised on straight line basis over its estimated useful life(s) of these assets (refer note 6).

 c) Amortisation on additions during the year is charged from month in which the asset is intended to use, 
whereas no amortisation is charged from the month the asset is disposed-off. 

3.4 Financial instruments

3.4.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

 The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

 - fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

 - measured at amortised cost. 

 A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition.

 Subsequent measurement
Debt investments at 
FVOCI   
           
            

3.4.2 Non-derivative financial assets

 All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and 
receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets 
and include trade debts, deposits, advances, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Company 
derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. 

3.4.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables 

 These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at 
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

3.4.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, 
balances with banks and short term borrowings availed by the Company, which are repayable on demand and 
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.4.3 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the 
respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings, unclaimed / unpaid 
dividend, accrued mark-up and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the financial liabilities 
when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities other than at fair value 
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate 
method. 

3.4.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs 

 Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost, while the difference 
between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.   

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

3.4.3.2 Trade and other payables 

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and 
subsequently measured at amortised costs. 

3.4.3.3 Contract liabilities 

 A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has 
received consideration. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the 
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

3.4.4 Derivative financial instruments - other than hedging

 Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the statement of financial position at 
estimated fair value with corresponding effect to statement of profit or loss. Derivative financial instruments are 
carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative.

3.4.5 Derivative financial instruments - cash flow hedges

 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in fair value 
of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. Any 
ineffective portion of changes in fair value of derivative is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss. 
The amount accumulated in equity is removed therefrom and included in the initial carrying amount of 
non-financial asset upon recognition of non-financial asset.

 The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques. These are 
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative.

3.4.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only 
when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Company 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. The 
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the counter parties.

3.5 Stores and spares

 Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, less provision for 
impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred 
thereon. 

 Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares and is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

3.6 Stock-in-trade

 These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined under the weighted average 
basis. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Raw material in transit comprises invoice value and other charges thereon. 
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business less net 
estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. Scrap and by-product is valued at estimated realisable 
value.

3.7 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income respectively. In making the 
estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income 
tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

4.1 Operating assets

Vehicles Total

Balance as at July 1, 2020
Cost / revalued amount 2,241,441        3,345,938        20,142,300       122,322           161,085           26,013,086       
Accumulated depreciation -                  (152,659)         (5,853,796)       (69,426)           (67,796)           (6,143,677)        

2,241,441        3,193,279        14,288,504       52,896             93,289             19,869,409       

Additions / adjustments /
  transfers from CWIP - note 4.2 -                  18,565             347,505            20,563             50,046                          436,679 

Disposals - note 4.1.6
- Cost - (7,064) - (241) (31,628) (38,933) 
- Accumulated depreciation - 91 - 136 20,413 20,640 

- (6,973) - (105) (11,215) (18,293) 

- - (383,369) - - (383,369) 

Depreciation charge - note 4.1.1

Impairment charge - note 4.1.5

-                  (197,981)         (1,275,949)       (15,030)           (30,665)                   (1,519,625)

Balance as at June 30,
  2021 (NBV) 2,241,441 3,006,890 12,976,691 58,324 101,455 18,384,801

Gross carrying value as 
  at June 30, 2021

Cost / revalued amount 2,241,441        3,357,439        20,489,805       142,644           179,503           26,410,832
Accumulated depreciation -

- - - -

                  (350,549)         (7,129,745)

(383,369) (383,369)

       (84,320)           (78,048)           (7,642,662)        

Accumulated impairment                    

Net book value 2,241,441 3,006,890 12,976,691 58,324 101,455 18,384,801

Depreciation rates
  (% per annum) -                  3 - 10 3 - 50 5 - 50 20

Balance as at July 1, 2019

Cost / revalued amount 1,622,500        2,427,972        19,240,558       104,738           140,489           23,536,257       
Accumulated depreciation -                  - (4,703,148) (55,771) (48,978) (4,807,897) 

1,622,500 2,427,972 14,537,410 48,967 91,511 18,728,360 

Additions / adjustments / 
  tansfers from CWIP 618,941           922,539           962,651            17,584             43,951             2,565,666         

Disposals

- Cost - (4,573) (60,909) - (23,355) (88,837) 
- Accumulated depreciation - 3,074 33,083 - 11,160 47,317 

- (1,499) (27,826) - (12,195) (41,520) 

Depreciation charge - note 4.1.1 -                  (155,733)         (1,183,731)       (13,655)           (29,978)                   (1,383,097)

Balance as at June 30,
  2020 (NBV) 2,241,441 3,193,279 14,288,504 52,896 93,289 19,869,409 

Gross carrying value as 
  at June 30, 2020
Cost / revalued amount 2,241,441        3,345,938        20,142,300       122,322           161,085           26,013,086       
Accumulated depreciation -                  (152,659)         (5,853,796)       (69,426)           (67,796)           (6,143,677)        

Net book value 2,241,441 3,193,279 14,288,504 52,896 93,289 19,869,409 

Depreciation rates (% per
annum) -                  3 - 10 3 - 50 5 - 50 20

Net book value (NBV)

Net book value (NBV)

Freehold land - 
revalued - 

notes 4.1.2, 
4.1.3 and 4.1.4

Buildings on 
freehold land - 
revalued 4.1.2, 
4.1.3 and 4.1.4

Furniture, 
fixtures and 

office 
equipment

Plant and 
machinery

(Rupees in ‘000)

A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1

1 4 1



1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 International Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated on September 03, 2007 as a public unlisted 

company limited by shares under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is 
domiciled in the province of Sindh. The Company was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on June 
01, 2011. The Company is subsidiary of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company) which holds 
245,055,543 (2020: 245,055,543) shares of the Company as at June 30, 2021 representing 56.3% (2020: 
56.3%) of the shareholding of the Company.

 The net assets of the Steel Project Undertaking of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company), 
amounting to Rs. 4,177.167 million determined as at August 23, 2010 (day immediately preceding the 
completion date) in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, were transferred to the Company on August 
24, 2010. In consideration of transferring to and vesting the Steel Project Undertaking in the Company, 
417,716,700 fully paid-up ordinary shares were issued at par value to the Holding Company. 

 The primary activity of the Company is the business of manufacturing of cold rolled, galvanized and colour 
coated steel coils and sheets. The Company commenced commercial operations on January 01, 2011. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 101, Beaumont Plaza, 10 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi 
- 75530.

 The manufacturing facilities of the Company are situated at 399-405, Rehri Road, Landhi Industrial Area, and 
Plot No. LE-73-79,102-103, 112-118, 125-129, Survey No. NC.98, near Arabian Country Club, National 
Industrial Parks (NIP), Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Karachi.  

 The Company has sales offices at following locations: 

 - Chinoy House, 6-Bank Square, Lahore;

 - Office No. 303-A 3rd Floor Evacuee Trust Complex Sector F-5/1 Agha Khan Road, Islamabad; and

 - Office No. 708-A, United Mall, Abdali Road, Multan.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1  Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

-  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of 
IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2  Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the Company's 
liability under defined benefit plan (gratuity) that is determined based on the present value of defined benefit 
obligation less fair value of plan assets, freehold land and buildings thereon that are stated at fair values 
determined by an independent valuer and derivative financial instruments which are stated at fair value.

2.3  Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. All 

amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4  Use of significant estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in 
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or 
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information 
about the judgments made by the management in the application of the accounting policies, that have the most 
significant effect on the amount recognized in these financial statements, assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties with significant risk of material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future 
periods are described in the following notes:

 - Property, plant and equipment (note 3.2)

 - Trade debts, advances and other receivables (note 3.4.2.1)

 - Stores and spares (note 3.5) 

 - Stock-in-trade (note 3.6)

 - Taxation (note 3.7)

 - Staff retirement benefits (note 3.8)

 - Impairment (note 3.12)

 - Provisions (note 3.13)

 - Contingent liabilities (note 3.14)

2.5  Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective 

 There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2020. However, these do 
not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting.

b) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

 There is a standard and certain other amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that will be 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2021. However, 
these are considered either not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company's 
financial statements and operations and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial 
statements.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The summary of significant accounting policies and methods of computations adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements are same as those applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

3.1 Lease liability and Right-of-use assets

 The Company, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying 
assets and lease liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

 At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract 
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 
Company mainly leases properties for its operations. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease 
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently 
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method over 
the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on 
the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any.

 The Company has various lease agreements for head office and sales offices which were previously classified 
by the Company based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership. Under IFRS 16, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all 
the leases i.e. these leases are on statement of financial position.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow 
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and 
conditions. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased 
by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a 
change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be 
exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The corresponding adjustment is 
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

 Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

 - Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

 - Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

 - Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 

 - The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

 - Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

 Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

 - The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

 - Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

 - Any initial direct costs; and 

 - Dismantling costs and Restoration costs.

 The company has not elected to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 
properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

3.2.1 Operating assets and depreciation

 Initial recognition 

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such item can be measured 
reliably.

 Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item 
is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 
management.

 Measurement

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land and buildings) are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land are stated at revalued amounts and buildings on 
freehold land are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if 
any. The costs of property, plant and equipment include:

(a) its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts 
and rebates;

(b) any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

(c) Borrowing costs, if any. 

 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Subsequent expenditure

 Expenditure incurred to replace a significant component of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
items can be measured reliably. All other expenditure (including repairs and normal maintenance) is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss as an expense when it is incurred. 

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on all items except for freehold land is charged on straight line method at the rates specified in 
note 4.1 to the financial statements and is generally recognised in statement of profit or loss.

 Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is available for use up to the month prior to 
disposal. 

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and equipment that is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date.

 Revaluation surplus

 Revaluation of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that 
the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation increase in the 
carrying amount of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is recognized, net of tax, in other 
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as "Revaluation surplus on property, 
plant and equipment" except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset 
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that reverse 
previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the 

remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss. The 
revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders. Each year, the difference 
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss 
and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus to 
retained earnings.

 Gains and losses on disposal

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the statement of profit or loss, and the related surplus on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, if any, is transferred directly to retained earnings.

3.2.2 Capital work-in-progress 

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any and consists of expenditure incurred 
(including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in the course of their construction and 
installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended use.

 Advances paid to suppliers for acquisition of property, plant and equipment including land and building is also 
classified under capital work-in-progress.

3.3 Intangible assets 

 An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the 
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

 Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding one 
year, are recognised as an intangible asset. 

 Indefinite intangible

 These are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

 Definite intangible

 a) These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

 b) These are amortised on straight line basis over its estimated useful life(s) of these assets (refer note 6).

 c) Amortisation on additions during the year is charged from month in which the asset is intended to use, 
whereas no amortisation is charged from the month the asset is disposed-off. 

3.4 Financial instruments

3.4.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

 The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

 - fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

 - measured at amortised cost. 

 A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition.

 Subsequent measurement
Debt investments at 
FVOCI   
           
            

3.4.2 Non-derivative financial assets

 All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and 
receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets 
and include trade debts, deposits, advances, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Company 
derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. 

3.4.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables 

 These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at 
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

3.4.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, 
balances with banks and short term borrowings availed by the Company, which are repayable on demand and 
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.4.3 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the 
respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings, unclaimed / unpaid 
dividend, accrued mark-up and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the financial liabilities 
when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities other than at fair value 
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate 
method. 

3.4.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs 

 Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost, while the difference 
between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.   

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

3.4.3.2 Trade and other payables 

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and 
subsequently measured at amortised costs. 

3.4.3.3 Contract liabilities 

 A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has 
received consideration. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the 
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

3.4.4 Derivative financial instruments - other than hedging

 Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the statement of financial position at 
estimated fair value with corresponding effect to statement of profit or loss. Derivative financial instruments are 
carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative.

3.4.5 Derivative financial instruments - cash flow hedges

 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in fair value 
of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. Any 
ineffective portion of changes in fair value of derivative is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss. 
The amount accumulated in equity is removed therefrom and included in the initial carrying amount of 
non-financial asset upon recognition of non-financial asset.

 The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques. These are 
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative.

3.4.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only 
when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Company 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. The 
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the counter parties.

3.5 Stores and spares

 Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, less provision for 
impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred 
thereon. 

 Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares and is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

3.6 Stock-in-trade

 These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined under the weighted average 
basis. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Raw material in transit comprises invoice value and other charges thereon. 
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business less net 
estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. Scrap and by-product is valued at estimated realisable 
value.

3.7 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income respectively. In making the 
estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income 
tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

 Cost of sales  25  1,389,844 1,254,205
 Selling and distribution expenses  26  9,860 9,383
 Administrative expenses  27  8,454 9,397
 Income from power generation  30.1  111,467 110,112
     1,519,625 1,383,097

  Note  2021 2020 
(Rupees in ‘000)

4.1.1 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

 Freehold land    1,916,942 1,916,942
 Buildings on freehold land    2,939,669 2,934,681
     4,856,611 4,851,623

    2021 2020 
(Rupees in ‘000)

4.1.4 Forced Sales Value of assets held under revaluation model are as follows:

Particulars Location Total Area
Manufacturing plant 399-405, Rehri Road, Landhi Town,  157,058 Sq. Yd.
  City District Government, Karachi.

  Plot No. LE-73-79, 102-103, 112-118, 125-129 653,400 Sq. Ft.
  Survey No. NC. 98, near Arabian Country Club,
  NIP, Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Karachi.

Office premises Office No. 203, 2nd Floor, Beamount Plaza, 1,794, Sq. Ft.
  10 Beamound Road, Karachi.

Multan Plot Khewat No. (B) 38, 114, 302, Khatooni No. 127,475, 365,904 Sq. Ft.
  1114, Mouza Laar, Bahawalpur Road, Multan.

4.1.3 The revaluation of freehold land and buildings thereon was carried out as of June 30, 2019 by MYK Associates 
(Private) Limited (an external valuer who is located in Karachi) on the basis of their professional assessment of 
present market values based on enquiries made about the cost of land of similar nature, size and location 
including  consideration of current cost of acquisition or construction net of diminution owing to depreciation, 
keeping in view the current condition. The revaluation resulted in a surplus on revaluation amounting to Rs. 450 
million which was incorporated in the books of the Company as at June 30, 2019. A Desktop Valuation of the 
revalued properties was also carried out by the same valuer as of June 30, 2021 resulting in no change in the 
forced sales value given in the last independent valuation report.

 The Company commissioned independent valuation of freehold land and buildings thereon during the years / 
periods ended June 30, 2013, June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2019 along with a Desktop Valuation carried out as of 
June 30, 2021.

 The carrying amount of the aforementioned assets as at June 30, 2021, if the said assets had been carried at 
historical cost, would have been as follows:     

  Freehold land  1,455,541 - 1,455,541
  Buildings on freehold land  3,094,512 (693,309) 2,401,203
  As at 30 June 2021  4,550,053 (693,309) 3,856,744

  As at June 2020  4,538,829 (543,472) 3,995,357

(Rupees in ‘000)

Cost Accumulated
depreciation

Net book
value

4.1.2 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of the Company are as follows:
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1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 International Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated on September 03, 2007 as a public unlisted 

company limited by shares under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is 
domiciled in the province of Sindh. The Company was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on June 
01, 2011. The Company is subsidiary of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company) which holds 
245,055,543 (2020: 245,055,543) shares of the Company as at June 30, 2021 representing 56.3% (2020: 
56.3%) of the shareholding of the Company.

 The net assets of the Steel Project Undertaking of International Industries Limited (the Holding Company), 
amounting to Rs. 4,177.167 million determined as at August 23, 2010 (day immediately preceding the 
completion date) in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, were transferred to the Company on August 
24, 2010. In consideration of transferring to and vesting the Steel Project Undertaking in the Company, 
417,716,700 fully paid-up ordinary shares were issued at par value to the Holding Company. 

 The primary activity of the Company is the business of manufacturing of cold rolled, galvanized and colour 
coated steel coils and sheets. The Company commenced commercial operations on January 01, 2011. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at 101, Beaumont Plaza, 10 Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi 
- 75530.

 The manufacturing facilities of the Company are situated at 399-405, Rehri Road, Landhi Industrial Area, and 
Plot No. LE-73-79,102-103, 112-118, 125-129, Survey No. NC.98, near Arabian Country Club, National 
Industrial Parks (NIP), Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Karachi.  

 The Company has sales offices at following locations: 

 - Chinoy House, 6-Bank Square, Lahore;

 - Office No. 303-A 3rd Floor Evacuee Trust Complex Sector F-5/1 Agha Khan Road, Islamabad; and

 - Office No. 708-A, United Mall, Abdali Road, Multan.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1  Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

-  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

 Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of 
IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2  Basis of measurement

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the Company's 
liability under defined benefit plan (gratuity) that is determined based on the present value of defined benefit 
obligation less fair value of plan assets, freehold land and buildings thereon that are stated at fair values 
determined by an independent valuer and derivative financial instruments which are stated at fair value.

2.3  Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. All 

amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

2.4  Use of significant estimates and judgments

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in 
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or 
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Information 
about the judgments made by the management in the application of the accounting policies, that have the most 
significant effect on the amount recognized in these financial statements, assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties with significant risk of material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future 
periods are described in the following notes:

 - Property, plant and equipment (note 3.2)

 - Trade debts, advances and other receivables (note 3.4.2.1)

 - Stores and spares (note 3.5) 

 - Stock-in-trade (note 3.6)

 - Taxation (note 3.7)

 - Staff retirement benefits (note 3.8)

 - Impairment (note 3.12)

 - Provisions (note 3.13)

 - Contingent liabilities (note 3.14)

2.5  Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective 

 There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began on July 1, 2020. However, these do 
not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting.

b) Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

 There is a standard and certain other amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that will be 
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2021. However, 
these are considered either not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company's 
financial statements and operations and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial 
statements.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The summary of significant accounting policies and methods of computations adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements are same as those applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

3.1 Lease liability and Right-of-use assets

 The Company, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying 
assets and lease liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

 At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract 
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 
Company mainly leases properties for its operations. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease 
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently 
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method over 
the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on 
the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any.

 The Company has various lease agreements for head office and sales offices which were previously classified 
by the Company based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership. Under IFRS 16, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all 
the leases i.e. these leases are on statement of financial position.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow 
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and 
conditions. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased 
by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a 
change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be 
exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The corresponding adjustment is 
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

 Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

 - Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

 - Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

 - Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 

 - The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

 - Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

 Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

 - The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

 - Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

 - Any initial direct costs; and 

 - Dismantling costs and Restoration costs.

 The company has not elected to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 
properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company 
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

3.2.1 Operating assets and depreciation

 Initial recognition 

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such item can be measured 
reliably.

 Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item 
is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 
management.

 Measurement

 Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land and buildings) are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land are stated at revalued amounts and buildings on 
freehold land are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if 
any. The costs of property, plant and equipment include:

(a) its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts 
and rebates;

(b) any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

(c) Borrowing costs, if any. 

 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Subsequent expenditure

 Expenditure incurred to replace a significant component of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
items can be measured reliably. All other expenditure (including repairs and normal maintenance) is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss as an expense when it is incurred. 

 Depreciation

 Depreciation on all items except for freehold land is charged on straight line method at the rates specified in 
note 4.1 to the financial statements and is generally recognised in statement of profit or loss.

 Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is available for use up to the month prior to 
disposal. 

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and equipment that is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date.

 Revaluation surplus

 Revaluation of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that 
the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation increase in the 
carrying amount of freehold land and buildings on freehold land is recognized, net of tax, in other 
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as "Revaluation surplus on property, 
plant and equipment" except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset 
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that reverse 
previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the 

remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss. The 
revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders. Each year, the difference 
between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss 
and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation surplus to 
retained earnings.

 Gains and losses on disposal

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the statement of profit or loss, and the related surplus on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, if any, is transferred directly to retained earnings.

3.2.2 Capital work-in-progress 

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any and consists of expenditure incurred 
(including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in the course of their construction and 
installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended use.

 Advances paid to suppliers for acquisition of property, plant and equipment including land and building is also 
classified under capital work-in-progress.

3.3 Intangible assets 

 An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the 
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

 Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding one 
year, are recognised as an intangible asset. 

 Indefinite intangible

 These are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

 Definite intangible

 a) These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

 b) These are amortised on straight line basis over its estimated useful life(s) of these assets (refer note 6).

 c) Amortisation on additions during the year is charged from month in which the asset is intended to use, 
whereas no amortisation is charged from the month the asset is disposed-off. 

3.4 Financial instruments

3.4.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

 The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

 - fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

 - measured at amortised cost. 

 A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition.

 Subsequent measurement
Debt investments at 
FVOCI   
           
            

3.4.2 Non-derivative financial assets

 All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company 
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and 
receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets 
and include trade debts, deposits, advances, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Company 
derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. 

3.4.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables 

 These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at 
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

3.4.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, 
balances with banks and short term borrowings availed by the Company, which are repayable on demand and 
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.4.3 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the 
respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings, unclaimed / unpaid 
dividend, accrued mark-up and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the financial liabilities 
when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities other than at fair value 
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate 
method. 

3.4.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs 

 Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost, while the difference 
between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.   

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

3.4.3.2 Trade and other payables 

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and 
subsequently measured at amortised costs. 

3.4.3.3 Contract liabilities 

 A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has 
received consideration. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the 
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

3.4.4 Derivative financial instruments - other than hedging

 Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the statement of financial position at 
estimated fair value with corresponding effect to statement of profit or loss. Derivative financial instruments are 
carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative.

3.4.5 Derivative financial instruments - cash flow hedges

 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in fair value 
of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. Any 
ineffective portion of changes in fair value of derivative is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss. 
The amount accumulated in equity is removed therefrom and included in the initial carrying amount of 
non-financial asset upon recognition of non-financial asset.

 The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques. These are 
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative.

3.4.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only 
when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Company 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. The 
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the counter parties.

3.5 Stores and spares

 Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, less provision for 
impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred 
thereon. 

 Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares and is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

3.6 Stock-in-trade

 These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined under the weighted average 
basis. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition. Raw material in transit comprises invoice value and other charges thereon. 
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business less net 
estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. Scrap and by-product is valued at estimated realisable 
value.

3.7 Taxation 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income respectively. In making the 
estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management considers the current income 
tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

4.1.5 The management of the Company has recorded impairment amounting to Rs. 388 million on the following units of plant 
and machinery which have been replaced by the Company and have been inoperative for the past few months:

 - Push and pull pickling line having cost and net book value of Rs. 541.20 million and Rs. 296.53 million 
respectively, which has been replaced with a new Continuous pickling line. 

 - Hydrogen plant having cost and net book value of Rs. 140.06 million and Rs. 86.84 million respectively which 
has been replaced with a new Hydrogen and Nitrogen plant.

 - Other capital stores and spares which are related to above units and are no longer useable for the Company.

 The recoverable amount of the above units were determined by reference to the fair value less cost to sell model 
based on indirectly derived prices as prescribed under level 3 of IFRS-13 'Fair Value Measurement'.

 The management estimates that the residual value of the above units of plant and machinery shall be the same 
as the cost to dismantle the plant resulting in an insignificant fair value less cost to sell. Hence, the management 
has written off the entire carrying amount of the above mentioned units of plant and machinery.

 The impairment loss is included in other operating charges in the statement of profit or loss as disclosed in note 
29.  

4.1.6 Details of property, plant and equipment disposed off, having net book value in excess of five hundred thousand 
rupees or more each are as follows:       

(Rupees in ‘000)
Vehicles
Toyota Corolla 3,546 827 2,719 2,800 81 Insurance Claim Jubilee General Insurance Third Party
Honda City 2,009 603 1,406 1,744 338 As per Policy Syed Irshad Rizvi Employee
Suzuki Alto 1,398 70 1,328 1,305 (23) Negotiation Yaseen Motors Third Party
Honda City 1,869 561 1,308 2,000 692 Insurance Claim Jubilee General Insurance Third Party
Suzuki Cultus 1,745 553 1,192 1,675 483 Negotiation M. Ahmed Ali Khan Third Party
Honda Civic 2,513 1,759 754 2,325 1,571 As per Policy Wasif Mahmood Employee
Suzuki Alto 1,101 349 752 1,300 548 Negotiation Syed Riaz Ahmed Third Party
Suzuki Mehran 860 344 516 810 294 Negotiation Farhat Khan Third Party 

 15,041 5,066 9,975 13,959 3,984

Plant and 
Machinery

Bus Bars 2,121 106 2,015 1,307 (708) Insurance Claim Jubilee General Insurance Third Party

Total 17,162 5,172 11,990 15,266 3,276

Particulars of buyer
buyer

2021

2020 2019 2020

2020

(Rupees in ‘000)

(Transfers) / 
Adjustments

(Transfers) / 
Adjustments2021

4.2 Capital work-in-progress

Freehold land  - - - - 463,830 155,111 (618,941) -

Buildings on
freehold land - 29,070 (18,565) 10,505 51,446 938,958 (990,404) -

Plant and 
machinery 75,155 383,444 (347,505) 111,094 123,861 1,033,924 (1,082,630) 75,155

Furniture,fixtures,
computer and office
equipment 26,577 16,845 (20,563) 22,859 23,892 20,269 (17,584) 26,577

Vehicles 5,606 50,975 (50,046) 6,535 - 49,557 (43,951) 5,606

 107,338 480,334 (436,679) 150,993 663,029 2,197,819 (2,753,510) 107,338
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4.3 Stores and spares held for capital expenditure

5. LEASES

5.1 Right-of-use assets
   Note 2021 2020
 (Rupees in ‘000)

 Balance at beginning of the year   49,377  152,996 
 Re-assessment / termination of leases   (12,284) (85,131)
 Depreciation charge during the year  5.1.1 (17,775)  (18,488)

 Balance at end of the year   19,318  49,377 

5.1.1 The depreciation charge on right-of-use assets for the year has been allocated as follows:   

5.2.1 Following is the carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movement during the year:   

5.2 Lease liabilities

 Rental contracts are made for a fixed period subject to renewal upon mutual consent of Company and lessor. 
Wherever practicable, the Company seeks to include extension option to provide operational flexibility. Lease 
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. 
Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these extension and termination options are 
reasonably certain to be exercised.    

    2021 2020
 (Rupees in ‘000)

 Selling and distribution expenses  26 15,861 13,492
 Administrative expenses  27 1,914 4,996

    17,775 18,488

    2021 2020
 (Rupees in ‘000)

 Balance at beginning of the year   54,853  152,996 
 Re-assessment / termination of leases    (14,658) (85,131)
 Interest expense  28   2,794  8,071 
 Payments   (20,326) (21,083)

 Balance at end of the year   22,663  54,853 

 Current portion   20,734  16,755 
 Non-current portion   1,929 38,098

    22,663  54,853 

Note    2021 2020
 (Rupees in ‘000)

 Balance at beginning of the year   661,607  448,501 
 Additions during the year   120,738  199,748 
 Transfers / adjustments made during the year   (85,712) 22,412 
 Provision for obsolescence against capital spares     (48,181) (9,054)
 Impairment loss during the year  4.1.5 (4,629) -   
 Balance at end of the year    643,823  661,607 
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2021 2020
Minimum

lease
payments

Interest
Present value 
of minimum 

lease 
payments

Present value 
of minimum 

lease 
payments

5.2.2 Lease liabilities payable are as follows:

6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

7. STORES AND SPARES
2021 2020

Note

 Less than one year 21,964 (1,230) 20,734 16,755
 Between one and five years 1,972 (43) 1,929 38,098

  23,936 (1,273) 22,663 54,853

8. STOCK-IN-TRADE
    2021 2020
 (Rupees in ‘000)

 Raw material   - in hand    3,041,826   6,655,805 

                               - in transit    5,287,176   432,047 

     8,329,002   7,087,852 

 Work-in-process    1,853,342   2,532,031 

 Finished goods    6,812,134   5,290,148 

 Scrap material    69,575   211,509 

 By-products    17,316   10,666 

     17,081,369   15,132,206 

 Stores    165,032  192,999 
 Spares    652,407   540,904 
 Loose tools   10,251   8,471 
     827,690   742,374 
 Less: Provision for obsolescence 
             against stores and spares   (151,008)  (73,414)
     676,682   668,960 

    2021 2020
 (Rupees in ‘000)

 Operating intangible assets

 Net book value at beginning of the year    1,197  2,736  
 Amortisation  6.2  (312) (1,539) 
 Net book value at end of the year    885  1,197  
 

 Gross carrying value as at 30 June     
 Cost    23,267 23,267  
 Accumulated amortisation    (22,382) (22,070) 
 Net book value    885 1,197  

 Amortisation rate (% per annum)   20% - 33.33% 20% - 33.33% 

6.1 Intangible assets comprise computer software.     

6.2  Total amount of amortisation has been charged to cost of sales in these financial statements.

A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1

1 4 5



9. TRADE DEBTS - considered good
Note 2021 2020

9.1 These include trade debts arising on account of export sales of Rs. 640.69 million (2020: Rs. 358.61 million) which 
are secured by way of Export Letters of Credit and Rs. 44.89 million (2020: Rs. 26.48 million) arising on account of 
domestic sales which are secured by way of Inland Letters of Credit.     

9.2 These also include receivable from IIL Australia PTY Limited - a related party amounting to Rs.17.09  million (2020: 
Rs. 29.64 million) and Sumitomo Corporation - an associated company amounting to Rs. 199.85 million (2020: Rs. 
94.67 million) which is not past due as at year end.    

9.2.1 The maximum aggregate amount due from the related parties at the end of any month during the year is Rs. 216.95  
million (2020: Rs. 374.2 million).     

9.3 The ageing of trade debts receivable from other than related parties as at the reporting date is as under:

2021 2020

10. ADVANCES, TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Note 2021 2020

10.1 These advances and trade deposits are non-interest bearing.

10.2 This includes advance to suppliers amounting to USD 8.98 million (Rs. 1,385.19 million) [2020: USD Nil (Rs. Nil)] 
to Sumitomo Corporation, a related party of the Company, for the purpose of import of Hot Rolled Coils (HRC).

10.3 This includes prepayment of insurance premium to Jubilee General Insurance Company Limited, a related party, 
amounting to Rs. 7.82 million (2020: Rs. 8.41 million).

 - Secured   9.1 & 9.2  685,575  385,099 
 - Unsecured    9.2 254,270   630,645 
     939,845  1,015,744 

 Not yet due   627,350  528,376 
 Past due 1-60 days   95,502  277,984 
 Past due 61 days   42  85,074 
    722,894  891,434 

 Advances to suppliers -  considered good   10.1 & 10.2  1,837,999   79,246 
 Trade deposits  10.1   76,773   15,036 
 Margin against shipping guarantee   -    6,807 
 Prepayments  10.3  10,903   34,515 
     1,925,675   135,604 
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11. STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

11.1  Defined contribution plan

 Staff Provident Fund

 All investments in collective investment schemes, listed equity and listed debt securities out of provident fund have 
been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions 
specified thereunder.          

11.2  Defined benefit scheme

 Staff Gratuity Fund         

11.2.1 As stated in note 3.8 the Company operates approved funded defined benefit gratuity plan for all permanent 
employees meeting the specified criteria as per the respective trust deed. Actuarial valuation of the plan is carried 
out every year and the latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at June 30, 2021.  

11.2.2 Plan assets held in trust are governed by local regulations which mainly include Trust  Act, 1882; the Companies 
Act, 2017; Income Tax Ordinance, 2001; Income Tax Rules, 2002 and the Rules under the respective trust deeds. 
Responsibility for governance of the Plans, including investment decisions and contribution schedules, lies with the 
respective Board of Trustees. The Company appoints the trustees among its employees.     

11.2.3 Risks on account of defined benefit plan       

 The Company faces the following risks on account of defined benefit plan:   

 Final salary risk - The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what the Company 
has assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount would also increase 
proportionately.           

 Asset volatility - Most assets are invested in risk free investments of 6 months, 3, 5 or 10 years Regular Income 
Certificates, Defence Savings Certificates, Treasury Bills and Government Bonds. However, investments in equity 
instruments is subject to adverse fluctuations as a result of change in the market price. 

 Discount rate fluctuation - The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to market 
yields on government bonds. A decrease in market yields on government bonds will increase plan liabilities, 
although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the current plans’ bond holdings. 

 Investment risks - The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to meet the liabilities. This 
risk is mitigated by closely monitoring the performance of investment.   

 Risk of insufficiency of assets - This is managed by making regular contribution to the Fund as advised by the 
actuary.            

11.2.4 Funding

 The gratuity plan is fully funded by the Company. The funding requirements are based on the gratuity fund’s 
actuarial measurement framework set out in the funding policies of the plan. The funding is based on a separate 
actuarial valuation for funding purposes for which the assumptions may differ from the assumptions used in 
determining defined benefit liability. Employees are not required to contribute to the plan.

11.2.5 The actuarial valuation of gratuity was carried out at June 30 by an independent actuary under projected unit credit 
method using the following assumptions:
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Financial assumptions
 Discount rate   10.25% 9.25%
 Expected rate of salary increase   9.25% 8.25%
Demographic assumptions
 Mortality rate   SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005
 Rates of employee turnover   Moderate Moderate
 Retirement assumption   Age 60 years Age 60 years

2021 2020

11.2.6 The amounts recognised in statement of financial position are as follows:

    2021 2020
 (Rupees in ‘000)

 Present value of defined benefit obligation (DBO)    237,868   185,614 

 Fair value of plan assets    (237,868)  (192,852)

 Asset as at 30 June     -     (7,238)

11.2.7 Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligation

    2021 2020
 (Rupees in ‘000)
 Present value of defined benefit 
    obligation - beginning of the year    185,614   149,405 
 Current service cost    26,742   25,379 
 Past service cost    7,823  -   
 Interest cost    17,050   20,974 
 Remeasurements: Actuarial losses on obligation    3,221   (5,702)
 Benefits paid    (2,582)  (4,442)
 Present value of defined benefit obligation    237,868  185,614 

11.2.8 Movements in the fair value of plan assets

    2021 2020
 (Rupees in ‘000)
 Fair value of plan assets - beginning of the year    192,852   149,405 
 Interest income on plan assets    18,523   22,657 
 Return on plan assets, excluding interest income    3,917   1,614 
 Benefits paid    (2,582)  (4,442)
 Contribution to fund    25,158   23,618 
 Fair value of plan assets - end of the year    237,868   192,852 
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11.2.9 Movement in net defined benefit liability

    2021 2020
 (Rupees in ‘000)
 Balance at beginning of the year    (7,238)  -   
 Re-measurements recognised in other comprehensive income during the year   (696)  (7,316)
 Expense chargeable to statement of profit or loss    33,092   23,696 
 Contribution paid during the year    (25,158)  (23,618)
 Balance at end of the year    -     (7,238)

11.2.10 Amount recognised in total comprehensive income

    2021 2020
 (Rupees in ‘000)
 Component of defined benefit costs recognized in statement of profit or loss
 Current service cost    26,742   25,379 
 Past service cost    7,823   -   
 Net interest cost
 -   Interest cost on defined benefit obligation    17,050   20,974 
 -   Return on plan assets    (18,523)  (22,657)
     33,092   23,696 
 Component of defined benefit costs (re-measurement) recognised in  

 other comprehensive income
 Re-measurements: Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation
 -  Loss due to change in experience adjustments    3,221   (5,702)
 -  Return on plan assets    (3,917)  (1,614)
 Net re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income    (696)  (7,316)
 Total defined benefit cost recognised in statement of      
 profit or loss and other comprehensive income     32,396   16,380 

 The following amounts have been charged in respect of these benefits to statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income:     

11.2.11 Components of defined benefit cost for the next year

    2021 2020
 (Rupees in ‘000)
 Current service cost    31,195   26,664 
 Interest expense on defined benefit obligation    23,710   16,649 
 Return on plan assets    (24,601)  (18,411)
 Net interest cost    (891)  (1,762)
 Cost for the next year to be recognised in statement of profit or loss   30,304   24,902 

 The contribution in relation to gratuity benefit for the year ending June 30, 2022 is expected to be same as the 
expense.
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11.2.12 Composition of fair value of plan assets

Fair value
(Rupees in ‘000)

Percentage Fair value
(Rupees in ‘000)

Percentage

2021 2020

11.2.13 The Company ensures asset / liability matching by investing in government securities, bank deposits and equity 
securities and does not use derivatives to manage its risk.

11.2.14 Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation       

    2021 2020
 (Rupees in ‘000)
 Distribution of timing of benefit payments
 One year    13,094   11,239 
 Two years    14,690   11,874 
 Three years    16,594   13,247 
 Four years    22,139   14,871 
 Five years    14,944   19,857 
 Six years and onwards    4,016,909   2,906,922 

11.2.15 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

    2021 2020
 (Rupees in ‘000)
 Actuarial liability
   Discount rate + 1%    213,184   165,510 
   Discount rate - 1%    267,161   209,618 
   Salary increase + 1%    267,577   209,973 
   Salary increase - 1%    212,399   164,854 
 

                           (Number in years)   
 

 Weighted average duration of the Defined Benefit Obligation   11 12

 The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. 
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating 
the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value 
of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) 
has been applied.

Government securities 176,019 74.00% 163,342 84.70%

Shares - listed 46,663 19.62% 28,153 14.60%

Bank deposits 15,186 6.38% 1,357 0.70%

Fair value of plan assets 237,868 100.00% 192,852 100.00%
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12. TAXATION - NET    
   Note 2021 2020
 (Rupees in ‘000)

 Tax receivable at beginning of the year    1,033,184   906,326 

 Minimum tax adjustment  19   472,137   -   

 Tax payments / adjustments

        made during the year    1,137,725   807,473 

     2,643,046   1,713,799 

 Less: Provision for tax - current  31   (2,768,058)  (680,615)

 Tax (payable) / receivable at end of the year    (125,012)  1,033,184 

13. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

 Cash at bank
  Conventional
    In current accounts in local currency    73,231 90,555
    In current accounts in foreign currency     219,072 14,286
    Call deposit receipt  13.1  33   93
      292,336  104,934
  Islamic
    In current account in local currency    65  993
  Cash in hand     110  269

      292,511  106,196 

13.1 Mark-up rate on call deposit receipt ranges from  5.50% to 7.99% (2020: 6.50% to 11.25%) per annum.

14.1 As at 30 June 2021, the Holding Company and Sumitomo Corporation (an associated company) held 245,055,543 
 (2020: 245,055,543) and 39,477,657 (2020: 39,477,657) ordinary shares respectively of Rs. 10 each.

  Note  2021 2020 

14. SHARE CAPITAL

 Authorised share capital
  2021 2020    2021 2020
 (Number of shares) (Rupees in ‘000)
  500,000,000 500,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each   5,000,000 5,000,000
 

 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
  2021 2020    2021 2020
 (Number of shares) (Rupees in ‘000)
    Fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each  
  30,000 30,000 issued for cash   300 300
    Fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each  
  417,716,700 417,716,700 issued against transfer of net assets  4,177,167 4,177,167
    Fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
  17,253,300 17,253,300 issued as right shares   172,533 172,533
  435,000,000 435,000,000    4,350,000 4,350,000
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15.1 The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve and is not available for distribution to the 
shareholders of the Company in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

15. REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY,
  PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Note

15.2  Movement in related deferred tax liability

 Balance at beginning of the year    191,281 205,137

 Tax effect on incremental depreciation
    transferred to retained earnings     (13,856) (13,856)

 Balance at end of the year    177,425  191,281 

16  LONG TERM FINANCING  - Secured

 CONVENTIONAL
  Long Term Finance Facility (LTFF)  16.1    955,917  1,205,940
  Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF)  16.2   12,189  - 

       968,106  1,205,940 
 ISLAMIC
  Islamic Long Term Finance Facility (ILTFF)  16.3    508,059  545,908 
  Long Term Finance (LTF)    3,430,000  4,610,000 
  Payroll Refinance Scheme  16.4    300,580  167,968 

       4,238,639   5,323,876 

 Less: Deferred Income - Government grant  17  (13,449) (18,370)

 Less: Current portion of long term loan:

 CONVENTIONAL
  Long Term Finance Facility (LTFF)    (250,020) (250,024)

 ISLAMIC
  Islamic Long Term Finance Facility (ILTFF)    (60,655) (36,614)
  Long Term Finance (LTF)    (980,000)  (1,189,921)
  Payroll Refinance Scheme    (171,760) (11,075)
       (1,212,415) (1,237,610)

       (1,462,435) (1,487,634)

      3,730,861  5,023,812 

Note

 Freehold land      
  Revalued amount as at June 30    785,901  785,901 

 Buildings on freehold land
 
  Balance at beginning of the year    659,588 707,366  
  
  Transferred to retained earnings in
    respect of incremental depreciation
    charged during the year    (47,778) (47,778)
  Balance at end of the year     611,810  659,588 
  Related deferred tax liability   15.2   (177,425) (191,281)

 Balance at end of the year - net of deferred tax    1,220,286  1,254,208 
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16.1 This represents finance facility loan obtained from different banks under the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) Long 
Term Finance Facility for Plant and Machinery in respect of export-oriented projects. 

 
16.2 This represents finance facility loan obtained from different banks under the SBP's Temporary Economic 

Refinance Facility available to the Company at below-market interest rate for setting up of new industrial units.

16.3 This represents finance facility loan obtained from different banks under the SBP's Islamic Long Term Finance 
Facility for Plant and Machinery in respect of export-oriented projects.

16.4 This represents salaries and wages under SBP's Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries at 
concessionary rates, earmarked from running finance limit. The loan is obtained in six tranches starting from 
May 2020.           

16.5.1 The above loans are secured against joint pari passu charge and ranking charge over fixed assets of the Company 
(such as land, building, plant and machinery etc.) with aggregate carrying amount of Rs. 12,802 million.

Sale
price

Purchase
price

Number of
installments and

commencement date

Date of
maturity /
repayment

Rate of 
mark-up

per annum
2021 2020

(Rupees in ‘000) (Rupees in ‘000)

16.5 Long term finances utilised under mark-up arrangements

Carrying amount

Conventional

i) LTFF       

 Bank Al Habib Limited 1,000,000 2,501,562 16 half yearly 30-May-26 1.00% over 490,436 615,440 
 Assistance for plant and   installments  SBP 
  machinery   12-Dec-16  Refinance rate
       

 United Bank Limited 1,000,000 4,675,000 32 quarterly 15-July-26 1.00% over 465,481 590,500
 Assistance for plant and   installments  SBP 
  machinery   16-Oct-16  Refinance rate

ii) TERF
 National Bank of Pakistan 500,000 13,904 16 half yearly 06-Oct-31 1.25% over 12,189 -
 Assistance for plant and    installments  SBP
  machinery   06-Apr-21  Refinance rate
        968,106 1,205,940
Islamic

i) ILTFF
 Meezan Bank Limited 700,000 792,312 32 quarterly 13-Mar-30 3.00% over 508,059 545,908
 Assistance for plant and   installments  SBP
  machinery   17-Oct-20  Refinance rate

ii) Payroll Refinance Scheme
 
 Faysal Bank Limited’s 343,521 348,263 8 quarterly 31-Dec-22 0.75% - 1.00% 300,580 167,968
 Payroll finance facility   installments  over SBP
     01-Apr-21  Refinance rate

iii) LTF

 Habib Bank Limited 5,000,000 5,625,000 10 half yearly 05-Dec-24 0.10% over 3,430,000 4,410,000
 Assistance for plant and   installments  06 months
  machinery   05-Jun-20  KIBOR

 Bank Al-Habib Limited 5,00,000 575,512 30 equal monthly 28-Jun-21 0.15% over - 200,000
 Assistance for plant and   installments  03 months
  machinery   28-Dec-18  KIBOR

        4,238,639 5,323,876

        5,206,745 6,529,816
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16.5.2 In relation to above borrowings, the Company needs to observe certain financial covenants (such as debt servicing 
ratio, current ratio, debt equity ratio etc.) and other non financial covenants as specified in the agreement with 
respective lenders which are complied with as of the reporting date.

16.5.3 During the year, mark-up paid on conventional long term finance is Rs. 67.32  million (2020: Rs. 103.13 million) 
whereas mark-up paid on Islamic long term finance is Rs. 379.39  million (2020: Rs. 824.27 million).

17.1 This represents grant obtained in respect of SBP's Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries at 
concessionary rates. In accordance with the terms of the loan, the Company was not allowed to lay-off the 
employees atleast for three months from the date of loan.

18 GAS INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT CESS 

 During the year, the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) has decided the Appeal against consumers 
upholding the vires of the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015 (GIDC Act), through its judgement 
dated August 13, 2020. The Supreme court on  November 02, 2020 ordered that their decision of August 13, 2020 
has validated the GIDC Act in complete sense and the benefits allowed under Section 8(2) of the GIDC Act to the 
industrial sector is also available. Further, payment of due Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (the Cess) was 
allowed in 48 installments instead of 24 installments.

 The Company has also filed a civil suit before the Honourable High Court of Sindh (SHC) on the ground that the 
Company has not passed on the burden of Cess. Stay order was granted in the aforesaid suit, which has been 
operative till the next date of hearing. 

 The Company has recorded the present value of the Cess by discounting the future cash flows using three year 
PKRV rate and has booked income of Rs. 183.64 million (2020: Rs. Nil), which has been recorded as other 
income. The unwinding of the GIDC during the year amounts to Rs. 40.84 million (2020: Nil).

 Despite the speaking order dated August 13, 2020 by the SCP, the Federal Government did not initiate the gas 
project within six months, therefore, during the year, the Company has filed a  petition in the SHC challenging the 
decision of the SCP.    

19. DEFERRED TAXATION 

 Deferred tax liability comprises (deductible) / taxable temporary differences in respect of the following: 

 Balance at beginning of the year    18,370  -   

 Deferred grant recognised during the year  17.1   15,620  19,088 

 Government grant recognised in income  30   (20,541) (718)

 Balance at end of the year    13,449  18,370 

 Less: current portion of deferred income - 

  Government grant  20  (12,431) (11,075)

      1,018 7,295 

  Note  2021 2020 17. DEFERRED INCOME - GOVERNMENT GRANT
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19.1 The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and the law 
allows net settlement. Therefore, they have been offset in the statement of financial position.

 
19.2 Deferred tax liability is restricted to 89.16% (2020: 81.39%) of the total deferred tax liability based on the 

assumptions that export sales will continue to fall under Final Tax Regime and the current trend of export and local 
sales ratio will continue to be the same in the foreseeable future.

19.3 Under the Finance Act, 2019, corporate rate of tax has been fixed at 29% for tax year 2020 and onwards. 
Therefore, deferred tax assets and liabilities have been recognised accordingly using the expected applicable rate 
of 29%.       

20.1 These include payable to Sumitomo Corporation, related party of the Company, amounting to Rs. 1,197.41 million 
(2020: Rs. 2,614 million).

20.2 These include current portion of provision for Gas Infrastructure Development Cess amounting to Rs. 403 million 
and provision against revision of gas tariff by Oil and Gas Regulation Authority amounting to Rs. 610.26 million 
(2020: Rs. 541. 69 million). 

       

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

 Taxable temporary difference
  Accelerated tax depreciation    2,295,044  2,074,572 

  Revaluation surplus on buildings  15.2  177,425  191,281 

      2,472,469  2,265,853 

 Deductible temporary differences
  Provision for compensated absences    (2,816)  (2,711)
  Unrealised exchange losses     (9,329) (17,070)
  Provision for Infrastructure Cess 
     and government levies     (346,500) (244,213)
  Provision for obsolescence 
     against stores and spares    (39,045)  (17,329)
  Provision for lease liabilities    (5,860) (12,947)
  Gas Infrastructure Development Cess    (36,922)  -   
  Difference of corporate tax and minimum tax     -  (472,137)
      (440,472) (766,407)

      2,031,997  1,499,446

  Note  2021 2020 

 Trade creditors  20.1  1,905,134 5,183,883 
 Accrued expenses  20.2   2,048,316  2,231,861 
 Provision for Infrastructure Cess  20.3   1,625,091  1,320,075 
 Workers' Welfare Fund  20.4    361,961 149,278 
 Workers' Profit Participation Fund  20.5  553,765 1,290 
 Deferred income - Government grant  17  12,431 11,075 
 Provision for Government levies  20.6  2,531 2,047 
 Short term compensated absences    10,892 11,485 
 Others     67,530  21,360 

       6,587,651  8,932,354 

  Note  2021 2020 
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20.3 The Sindh Finance Act, 1994 prescribed an infrastructure fee at the rate of 1% of the C&F value of all goods 
entering or leaving the province of Sindh via sea or air. The Sindh High Court (SHC), passed an interim order 
directing that every company subsequent to December 27, 2006 is required to clear the goods on paying 50% of 
the fee amount involved and furnishing a guarantee / security for the balance amount. Bank guarantees issued as 
per the above mentioned interim order amount to Rs. 1,667.5 million  (2020: Rs. 1,330.5 million), have been 
provided to the Department. However, a provision to the extent of amount utilized from the limit of guarantee has 
also been provided for by the Company on prudent basis. Subsequently through Sindh Finance Act 2015 and 
2016, the legislation has doubled the rate of Sindh Infrastructure Cess. 

 
 The case was decided on June 04, 2021 by the SHC. The SHC declared first four versions of the law 

unconstitutional and the release of bank guarantees were ordered. However, the Sindh Infrastructure 
Development  Cess Act, 2017 was declared constitutional with retrospective effect from 1994. The operation of the 
order will remain suspended till September 3, 2021. The Company is not satisfied with the above orders and has 
engaged legal consultant to file an appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan.

20.3.1 Provision for Infrastructure Cess
 
 This represents provision against fifty percent amount guaranteed to Excise and Taxation Officer (refer 20.3 note).

20.4  The Company filed a constitutional petition in the SHC against notice to the Company for payment of Sindh 
Workers Welfare Fund under the Sindh Workers Welfare Fund Act, 2014. Stay was obtained on the ground that 
the Company is a trans-provincial establishment  operating industrial and  commercial activities across Pakistan 
and is liable to pay Workers Welfare Fund under Federal Workers Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971.

20.5 Workers’Profit Participation Fund

 Balance at beginning of the year    1,320,075 1,058,166

 Provided during the year    305,016 261,909

 Balance at end of the year    1,625,091 1,320,075

    2021 2020 

 Balance at beginning of the year    1,290  17,024 

 Allocation for the year  29   553,773  22,064 

 Interest on workers' profit participation fund    -  471 

 Payment during the year     (1,298) (38,269)

 Balance at end of the year    553,765 1,290 

  Note  2021 2020 

 Balance at beginning of the year    2,047  329 

 Provided during the year     2,773  6,951 

 Payment during the year     (2,289) (5,233)

 Balance at end of the year    2,531 2,047 

    2021 2020 
20.6 Provision for Government levies - stamp duty
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22.1 The facilities for short term finance available from various commercial banks are for the purpose of meeting 
working capital requirements. The rates of mark-up on these finances range from 7.37% to 8.28% (2020: 7.87% 
to 11.72%) per annum. 

22.2 The Company has short term running finance facility under Export Refinance Scheme of the State Bank of 
Pakistan from a commercial bank. The rate of mark-up on this facility is 2.75 to 3.00% (2020: 3%) per annum. This 
facility matures within six months and is renewable.

22.3 The facility is for short term finance under Running Musharakah available from various Islamic Banks for the 
purpose of meeting working capital requirement. The rate of profit is 7.39% to 7.68% (2020: 8.46% to 11.84%) per 
annum.

22.4 The Company has availed this year short term running finance facility under Islamic Export Refinance Scheme of 
the State Bank of Pakistan from an Islamic bank. The rate of mark-up on this facility is 3% per annum. This facility 
matures within six months and is renewable. 

22.5 The unavailed facilities as at June 30, 2021 from the above borrowings amounted to Rs. 16,714 million (2020: Rs. 
7,879.59 million).

22.6 The above facilities are secured by way of joint pari passu charge and ranking charge over current and future 
moveable assets of the Company having aggregate charge amounting to Rs. 38,380 million.

 Sales commission payable    8,485 5,865 

 Advances from customers - unsecured    1,268,954  1,371,531 

      1,277,439  1,377,396 

    2021 2020 
21. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

 Conventional      
 Short term finance under mark-up
  arrangement  22.1    359,255 164,222 
 Short-term borrowing under Money 
  Market scheme  22.1 
    Maturing after three months     -  750,000 
    Maturing within three months    1,850,000 6,100,000 

      1,850,000 6,850,000 
 Short term finance under Export 
  Refinance Scheme  22.2   2,800,000 1,175,628 

 Islamic      
 Short term finance under Running 
    Musharakah  22.3    367,233 2,410,698 

 Short term finance under Islamic 
  Export Refinance Scheme  22.4   1,419,857 919,856 

      6,796,345 11,520,404 

  Note  2021 2020 
22. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - SECURED

21.1  100% (2020: 100%) advances from customers included in the contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the 
year got converted into revenue during the year.
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23.2 Commitments

23.2.1 Capital expenditure commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2021 amounted to Rs. 696.21 million (2020: 
Rs.78.46 million).

23.2.2 Commitments under Letters of Credit for raw materials and spares as at June 30, 2021 amounted to Rs. 20,156.29 
million (2020: Rs. 8,418.94 million).

23.2.3 The facilities for opening letters of credit and guarantees from banks as at June 30, 2021 amounted to Rs. 20,852 
million (2020: Rs. 8,497.4 million) and  Rs. 4,227.54 million (2020: Rs. 3,831.75 million) respectively of which 
unutilised balance at period end amounted to Rs. 8,431 million (2020: Rs. 17,052.60 million) and Rs. 304.96 
million (2020: Rs. 229.14 million) respectively.

23.2.4 Post-dated cheques issued in favour of Collector of Customs for the concession availed on account of special rate 
of duties and taxes on import of Hot Rolled Coils under SRO 565 and manufacturing bond as at June 30, 2021 
amounted to Rs. 4,591.72 million (2020: Rs. 1,951.01 million). 

23. CONTINGENCY AND COMMITMENTS

23.1 Contingency

Name of the CourtDescription of the factual basis of the
proceedings and relief sought

Principal parties Date instituted

A petition was filed before the Sindh High Court 
seeking order for the issuance of quota for 
concessionary import under SRO 565; release of 
85,000 tons of HRC arrived at the Port in 
November 2019 and for future shipments.

SHC granted release of 85,000 tons of HRC 
against submission of bank guarantee for the 
differential amount of duty & taxes amounting to 
Rs. 1,651 million. In a seperate order SHC 
instructed the authorities to allow provisional 
quota subject to submission of bank guarantee 
for the difference of duty & taxes. As ordered, the 
Input-Output Co-efficient Organisation (IOCO) is 
issuing quota equivalent to ordered/shipped 
quantity of raw material on case to case basis.

Sindh High Court I.S.L vs Federation 
of Pakistan/Director 

IOCO/The Chief 
Collector (South)

4-Nov-19

 Sale of goods less returns:
 Local    68,857,175 46,634,706
 Export    11,852,455 8,993,458

      80,709,630 55,628,164

 Sales tax    (10,082,081) (6,661,868)
 Trade discounts    (98,539) (391,963)
 Sales commission    (732,770) (492,396)
      (10,913,390) (7,546,227)

      69,796,240 48,081,937

    2021 2020 
24. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
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24.1 The domestic sales revenue includes Rs. 4,644.33 million (2020: Rs. 70.53 million) on account of sales from 
manufacturing facility located at National Industrial Parks, Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Karachi which is a Special 
Economic Zone.

24.2 DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE

 In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical markets and major product lines: 

 Primary geographical markets
 Local    57,943,785  39,088,479 
 Asia     4,976,320  3,900,336 
 Europe    331,630  15,668 
 Australia    92,034  114,397 
 North and South America    5,164,798   3,631,696 
 Africa     1,287,673  1,331,361 
        
       69,796,240 48,081,937 
 Major product lines
 Cold rolled    25,607,724 18,657,935 
 Galvanized product    41,352,641 27,642,405 
 By-product    2,835,875  1,781,597

       69,796,240  48,081,937 

  Note  2021 2020 

25. COST OF SALES

 Raw material consumed
 Opening stock of raw material    6,655,805  1,919,579 
 Purchases    49,216,066   44,749,219 

      55,871,871  46,668,798 
 Closing stock of raw material   8   (3,041,826) (6,655,805)

      52,830,045  40,012,993
 Manufacturing overheads
 Salaries, wages and benefits   25.1   690,384 572,704 
 Electricity, gas and water    1,512,522  1,709,862 
 Insurance    31,430  28,505 
 Security and janitorial    31,142  31,773 
 Depreciation   4.1.1  1,389,844  1,254,205 
 Amortisation   6   312   1,539 
 Stores and spares consumed    152,153   139,676 
 Provision for obsolescence against 
    stores and spares    77,594  38,583 
 Provision for obsolescence against 
    capital spares    48,181  9,054 
 Repairs and maintenance    140,843  94,994 
 Postage, telephone and stationery    7,200  7,346 
 Vehicle, travel and conveyance    32,045   33,203 
 Internal material handling     8,489  12,580 
 Environment management expense    3,682  3,099 
 Computer stationery and software support fees     19,071  11,063 
 Partial manufacturing expense    200  6,286 
 Sundries    37,243  28,872 

      4,182,335  3,983,344 

      57,012,380  43,996,337 
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25.1 These include Rs. 13.41 million (2020: Rs. 12.46 million) in respect of contribution to provident fund, Rs. 25.94 
million (2020: Rs. 18.22 million) in respect of gratuity fund and  Rs. 7.90 million (2020: Rs. 4.86 million) in respect 
of compensated absences.

26. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

26.1 These include Rs. 3.55 million (2020: Rs. 3.26 million) in respect of contribution to provident fund, Rs. 1.71 million 
(2020: Rs. 2.17 million) in respect of gratuity fund and  Rs. 0.15 million (2020: Rs. 0.26 million) in respect of 
compensated absences.

  Note  2021 2020 

  Note  2021 2020 

  Note  2021 2020 
27. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

 Work-in-process
 Opening stock    2,532,031 1,942,101 
 Closing stock  8    (1,853,342) (2,532,031)

      678,689  (589,930)

 Cost of goods manufactured    57,691,069  43,406,407 

 Finished goods, scrap material and by-products:
 Opening stock    5,512,323  5,974,996 
 Closing stock  8    (6,899,025) (5,512,323)

      (1,386,702) 462,673 

      56,304,367   43,869,080 

 Salaries, wages and benefits  26.1  116,993  88,483 
 Rent, rates and taxes    103,549  37,170 
 Electricity, gas and water    3,580  2,773 
 Insurance    4,221  2,107 
 Depreciation   4.1.1   9,860  9,383 
 Depreciation on right-of-use asset  5.1.1   15,861  13,492 
 Postage, telephone and stationery    4,344  4,660 
 Vehicle, travel and conveyance    12,306  19,363 
 Freight and forwarding    677,442  634,473 
 Sales promotion    102,172  69,616 
 Others    12,668  12,814 

      1,062,996  894,334 

 Salaries, wages and benefits  27.1  189,465  145,143 
 Rent, rates and taxes    965  347 
 Electricity, gas and water    2,012  2,477 
 Insurance    2,977  2,409 
 Depreciation   4.1.1 8,454  9,397 
 Depreciation on right-of-use asset  5.1.1 1,914  4,996 
 Security and janitorial services    3,499  669 
 Printing and stationery    1,153  2,601 
 Computer stationery and software support fees     42  365 
 Postage and communication    702  1,253 
 Vehicle, travel and conveyance     9,770  8,744 
 Legal and professional charges     106,147  60,683 
 Certification and registration charges    2,909  6,886 
 Directors’ fee    9,500  7,525 
 Others    22,010  9,316 

      361,519  262,811 
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27.1 These include Rs. 5.94 million (2020: Rs. 5.66 million) in respect of contribution to provident fund, Rs. 4.18 million 
(2020: Rs. 2.27 million) in respect of gratuity fund and  Rs. Nil (2020: Rs. 0.16 million) in respect of compensated 
absences.

  Note  2021 2020 
28. FINANCE COST

  Note  2021 2020 
29. OTHER OPERATING CHARGES

    2021 2020 
29.1 Auditors’remuneration

 Conventional
  - Interest on long term financing    63,645  92,651 
  - Interest on short term borrowings    215,882  1,060,467 

      279,527  1,153,118 
 Islamic
  - Mark-up on long term financing    374,660  689,513 
  - Mark-up on short term borrowings    51,753  307,514 

      426,413  997,027 

 Bank charges    62,356  34,475 
 Unwinding of Gas Infrastructure    
  Development Cess    40,841   -   
 Interest on Workers' Profit Participation Fund     -    471 
 Exchange Loss on FE-25    -    121,645 
 Interest on lease liabilities  5.2. 1 2,794  8,071 

      811,931  2,314,807 

 Auditors' remuneration  29.1 2,647   2,547 
 Donations   29.2   105,160  19,200 
 Workers' Profit Participation Fund  20.5  553,773  22,064 
 Workers' Welfare Fund    227,081  (22,947)
 Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment  4.1.5  387,998   -   
 Exchange loss - net   -   313,393 

     1,276,659  334,257  

 Audit services
 Annual audit fee   1,629   1,629 
 Half yearly review    443   443 
 Out of pocket expenses   241  241 

      2,313  2,313 

 Non-audit services
 Certifications for regulatory purposes   334  234 

      2,647  2,547 
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(Rupees in ‘000)

29.2 Donations

29.2.1 Donation to the following organization exceeds 10% of total amount of donations made or Rs.1 million, whichever 
is higher.      

 Amir Sultan Chinoy Foundation     47,100    -   
 SINA Health Education and Welfare Trust   12,000    -   
 Sindh Institute of Urology and Transplantation   10,000   -   
 Habib University Foundation     10,000    -   
 The Citizens Foundation      6,200   5,600 
 The Kidney Centre      5,000   -   
 NED University of Engineering and Technology   5,000   -   
 Habib Education Trust      2,500    -   
 Layton Rahmatulla Benevolent Trust    2,000    -   
 The Hunar Foundation      2,000    -   
 Karachi Relief Trust (for COVID-19)    -   10,000 

        101,800   15,600 

29.2.2 Donations to entities in which directors are interested are as follows:

 Name  Interest Name and address of the   
 of Director in Donee Donee
 
 Mr. Samir Chinoy Chairman Amir Sultan Chinoy Foundation   47,100  -
    101, Beamount Plaza, 10 Beamount Road, Karachi.

 Mr. Towfiq H. Chinoy Trustee Habib University Foundation   10,000  -
    University Avenue, Off. Shahra-e-Faisal,
    Gulistan-e-Johar, Karachi.

 Spouse of Mr. Samir Director Karwan-e-Hayat   1,000  -
 M. Chinoy   101, Al-Noor Arcade, Near Qamar-ul-Islam Mosque,  
    Khayaban-e-Jami, Karachi

 Mr. Zakaullah Khan Trustee Al-Rehmat Benevolent Trust Mohallah  -  1,000
    Kakzaiyan, Tehsil Pasrur, District Sialkot

 Mr. Towfiq H. Chinoy Chairman Karachi Relief Trust (for COVID-19)  -  10,000
    101, Beaumont Plaza, 10 Beaumont Road, Karachi
       58,100  11,000
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30.1.1 These include Rs. 0.51 million (2020: Rs 0.48 million) in respect of contribution to provident fund, Rs. 1.29 million 
(2020: Rs. 1.03 million) in respect of gratuity fund.          
         

30.1.2 The Company has electricity power generation facility at its premises. The Company has generated electricity in 
excess of its requirements which is supplied to K-Electric Limited under an agreement. The agreement is valid for 
period up to 20 years w.e.f. August 31, 2007.

30. OTHER INCOME

 Income from non-financial assets
 Income from power generation   30.1  11,965  20,515 
 Gain / (loss) on sale of  property, plant and equipment   13,554  (12,729)
 Rental income      2,439   2,526 
 Gain on remeasurement of  Gas Infrastructure Development Cess  183,637   -   
 Exchange gain - net      11,113  -   
 Gain on termination of lease      2,374   -   
 Others       30,597   19,049 

         255,679  29,361 
 Income from financial assets 
 Income on bank deposit - conventional   39,613   5,444 
 Government grant     17   20,541   718 

         60,154  6,162 

        315,833   35,523 

30.1 Income from power generation

 Revenue       523,047 601,071 
 Cost of electricity produced:
  Salaries, wages and benefits   30.1.1 27,013  22,563 
  Electricity, gas and water      1,319,642  1,339,509 
  Depreciation      4.1.1  111,467  110,112 
  Stores and spares consumed     22,886   20,983 
  Repairs and maintenance     59,497  63,406 
  Sundries       1,553   1,393 

         1,542,058  1,557,966 
 Less: Self consumption       (1,030,976)  (977,410)

         511,082   580,556 

 Income from power generation    11,965  20,515 

31. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) / CREDIT

 Current - for the year     12 (2,768,058) (680,615)
 Deferred      (60,212) 733,295

        (2,828,270) 52,680

Note

Note
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32.1 There were no convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding as at June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

2021 2020 2021 2020
(Effective tax rate %) (Rupees in ‘000)

31.1 Relationship between income tax pense
  and accounting profit

32. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC 
 AND DILUTED
   Note 2021 2020
 (Rupees in '000) 

 Profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders   7,466,331 494,851

     (Number)

 Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year 14 435,000,000 435,000,000

   

     (Rupees)

 Earnings per share - basic and diluted   17.16 1.14

Profit before taxation   10,294,601 442,171

Tax at the enacted tax rate (29.00) (29.00) (2,985,434) (128,230)

Effect on income under final tax regime 2.18 39.65 224,188 175,342

Effect of income under minimum tax regime 1.36 - 140,198 -

Effect of tax credit 0.07 1.26 7,167 5,568

Change in normal tax regime ratio (2.35) - (242,009) -

Permanent differences 0.27 - 27,620 -

 (27.47) 11.91 (2,828,270) 52,680
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33. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

33.1 Changes in working capital

 (Increase) / decrease  in current assets
 Stores and spares       (85,316)  (96,569)
 Stock-in-trade       (1,949,163)  (484,247)
 Trade debts       75,899   (147,709)
 Receivable from K-Electric Limited (KE)    12,473  (396)
 Advances, trade deposits and prepayments   (1,790,071)  (26,616)
 Sales tax receivable      2,457,038   (1,720,946)

         (1,279,140) (2,476,483)
 Increase / (decrease ) in current liabilities     
 Trade and other payables      (1,451,517) 3,309,736 
 Contract liabilities      (99,957)  118,385 

         (2,830,614) 951,638

Note

 Profit before income tax      10,294,601  442,171 
 Adjustments for non cash charges 
  & other income        
  
 Depreciation of property, plant 
   and equipment     4.1.1  1,519,625   1,383,097 
 Depreciation of right of use assets  5.1.1  17,775   18,488 
 Amortisation of intangible assets   6   312   1,539 
 Impairment of property, plant and equipment  29   387,998   -   
 Gain on remeasurement of Gas Infrastructure Development Cess 30   (183,637)  -   
 Unwinding of Gas Infrastructure Development Cess  28   40,841   -   
 Provision for obsolescence against  stores and spares  25   77,594   38,583 
 Provision for obsolescence against  capital spares  25   48,181   9,054 
 Provision for staff retirement benefits  11   33,092   23,696 
 Provision for compensated absences    10,583   8,275 
 Income on bank deposits-conventional  30   (39,613)  (5,444)
 (Gain) / loss on disposal of property,  plant and equipment  30   (13,554)  12,729 
 Government grant income    30   (20,541)  (718)
 Gain on termination of lease    30   (2,374)
 Finance cost     28  771,090   2,314,807 

         12,941,973   4,246,277 
 Changes in working capital    33.1  (2,830,614)  951,638 

        10,111,359  5,197,915 
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34. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

35. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

 Cash and bank balances     13  292,511   106,196 
 Running finance under mark-up 
    arrangement from banks    22  (359,255)  (164,222)
 Short-term borrowing under        
  Money Market scheme    22  (1,850,000)  (6,100,000)
 Short-term borrowing under        
  Running Musharakah     22  (367,233) (2,410,698)

         (2,283,977) (8,568,724)

Chief Executive Directors Executives

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

(Rupees in ‘000)

Managerial remuneration 27,146 27,146 11,340 14,800 139,543 131,252

Bonus 9,048 9,048 3,780 3,600 43,380 36,919

Retirement benefits 3,392 3,392 1,440 1,350 16,590 13,888

Rent, utilities, leave encashment etc. 13,573 13,573 5,670 7,289 69,771 65,626

Directors’ fees - - 9,500 7,525 - -

 53,159 53,159 31,730 34,564 269,284 247,685

Number of persons 1 1 10 10 50 42

35.1 The Chief Executive Officer, Directors and certain Executives are provided with free use of Company maintained 
vehicles whereas, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer are also provided with security guards 
in accordance with the Company's policy. 

35.2 Fee paid to 12 (2020: 15) non-executive directors is Rs. 9.5 million (2020: Rs. 7.52 million) on account of meetings 
attended by them.

35.3 Reimbursement of chairman's expenses was Rs. 3.6 million (2020: Rs. 2.46 million).

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

 Financial risk management
 The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 

Company's risk management framework. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of 
financial instruments: 

 -  Credit risk          
 -  Liquidity risk          
 -  Market risk

Note
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 - Long term deposit with Central Depository
    Company of Pakistan Limited   100  100 
 -  Trade debts     9  939,845  1,015,744 
  -  Trade deposits and margin against  shipping guarantee  10  76,773   21,843 
  -  Receivable from K-Electric Limited    26,920  39,393 
  -  Bank balances     13  292,511   106,196 

         1,336,149  1,183,276 

 Risk management framework 

 The Board meets frequently throughout the year for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management 
policies. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the 
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk 
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the 
Company’s activities. The Company, through its standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and 
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

 The Board Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk 
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to 
the risks faced by the Company.

36.1 Credit Risk

 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 
to meet its contractual obligations without considering the fair value of the collateral available there against.

36.1.1 Exposure to credit risk

 The carrying amount of respective financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows: 

 The Company does not take into consideration the value of collateral while testing financial assets for impairment. 
The Company considers the credit worthiness of counterparties as part of its risk management.

 Long term deposit with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC)

 This represents long term deposits with CDC. The Company does not foresee any credit exposure there against 
as the amounts are paid to counterparty as per agreement and is refundable on termination of the agreement with 
respective counterparty.

 Trade debts          
          
 The Company's exposure to credit risk arising from trade debtors is mainly influenced by the individual 

characteristics of each customer. Majority of the Company's sales are made against receipts in advance from 
customers. The Company has no major concentration of credit risk with any single customer. The majority of the 
trade customers have been transacting with the Company for several years. The Company establishes an 
allowance for impairment where it considers recoveries are not probable. 

Note
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 Domestic      106,477 98,061
 Export      860,288 957,076

        966,765 1,055,137

 Trade deposits          
          
 These represent deposits placed with various suppliers as per the terms of securing availability of services. The 

management does not expect to incur credit loss there against.

 Receivable from K-Electric Limited

 The receivable from K-Electric Limited amounts to Rs. 26.92 million (2020: Rs. 39.39 million) on account of 
electricity provided to it under an agreement from the power plant located at the factory site. The Company does 
not expect to incur credit loss against this receivable.

 Analysis of gross amounts receivable from local and foreign trade debtors and from K-Electric Limited are as 
follows:   

 Management believes that the unimpaired balances that are past due are still collectible in full, based on historical 
payment behaviour and review of financial strength of respective customers. Further, certain trade debtors are 
secured by way of Export Letter of Credit and Inland Letter of Credit which can be called upon if the counter party 
is in default under the terms of the agreement. 

 
 Cash is held only with reputable banks with high quality external credit rating assessed by external rating agencies. 

Following are the credit ratings of banks with which balances are held or credit lines available:

36.1.2 Impairment losses          
           
 The aging of trade debtors and receivable from K-Electric Limited (KE) at the reporting date was as follows:

Gross Impairment Gross Impairment

(Rupees in ‘000)

2021 2020

Not past due 871,221 - 692,079 -

Past due 1-60 days 95,501 - 277,984 -

Past due 61 + days 43 - 85,074 -

Total 966,765 - 1,055,137 -
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36.1.3 Concentration of credit risk          
           
 Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in 

the same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual 
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate 
the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry. In order to 
avoid excessive concentrations of risk, management focuses on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio. 
Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly. Management does not consider 
that it has any concentration of credit risk at the reporting date.

36.2  Liquidity risk          
           
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial 

liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the 
possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or there is difficulty in 
raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Company’s approach 
to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities 
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to 
the Company's reputation.            

           
 The Company ensures that it has sufficient cash to meet expected working capital requirements by having credit 

lines available. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments and 
excluding the impact of netting agreements:

Bank Rating Agency Rating
Short term Long term

Habib Bank Limited VIS A1+ AAA

United Bank Limited VIS A1+ AAA

Faysal Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA

Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA A1+ AAA

MCB Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AAA

MCB Islamic Bank Limited PACRA A1 A

Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited PACRA A1+ AAA

Meezan Bank Limited VIS A1+ AAA

Bank Al Falah Limited PACRA A1+ AA+

Dubai Islamic Bank Limited VIS A1+ AA

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA+

Allied Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AAA

Samba Bank Limited VIS A1 AA

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Moody’s - A1

National Bank of Pakistan  PACRA A1+ AAA
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36.2.1 The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of mark-up 
rate effective as at June 30. The rate of mark-up has been disclosed in respective notes to these financial 
statements.

36.2.2 Long term financing from various banks contains certain loan covenants. A breach of covenant, in future, may 
require the Company to repay the respective loans earlier than as directed in the above table.

36.3  Market risk          
           
 Market risk is the risk which arises due to changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates 

and equity prices, that will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The 
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable 
parameters, while optimising the return. The Company is exposed to currency risk and interest rate risk only.

 Management assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits, receivable from 
K-Electric Limited (KE), trade debts, trade payables, short term borrowings and other current liabilities 
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short-term maturities of these instruments. For long term 
deposit assets and long term liabilities, management considers that their carrying values approximate fair value 
owing to credit standing of counterparties and interest payable on borrowings is at market rate. 

Carrying
amount

Contractual
cash flows

Six months
or less

Six to
twelve
months

One to
five years

More than
five years

2021

(Rupees in ‘000)
 Financial liabilities

 Long term financing 5,193,296 (5,995,118) (910,430) (883,700) (4,039,050) (161,938)

 Short-term borrowings 6,796,345 (6,796,345) (6,796,345) -      -      -     

 Accrued mark-up 78,728 (78,728) (78,728) -      -      -     

 Trade and other payables 1,972,664 (1,972,664) (1,972,664) -      -      -     

 Lease liabilities 22,663 (23,936) (10,902)   (11,062) (1,972) -     

 Unclaimed dividend 8,798 (8,798) (8,798) -      -      -     
  14,072,494 (14,875,589) (9,777,867) (894,762) (4,041,022) (161,938)

Carrying
amount

Contractual
cash flows

Six months
or less

Six to
twelve
months

One to
five years

More than
five years

2020

(Rupees in ‘000)
 Financial liabilities

 Long term financing 6,529,816 (7,786,656) (956,214) (981,121) (5,527,538) (321,783)

 Short-term borrowings 11,520,404 (11,520,404) (11,520,404) -      -      -     

 Accrued mark-up 223,770 (223,770) (223,770) -      -      -     

 Trade and other payables 5,205,243 (5,205,243) (5,205,243) -      -      -     

 Lease liabilities 54,853 (68,477) (11,383) (11,596) (45,498) -     

 Unclaimed dividend 8,433 (8,433) (8,433) -      -      -     

  23,542,519 (24,812,983) (17,925,447) (992,717) (5,573,036) (321,783)
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36.3.1 Currency risk          
           
 Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in foreign exchange rates.          
           
 Exposure to currency risk          
           
 The Company is exposed to currency risk on trade debts, bank balances and trade creditors that are denominated 

in a currency other than the respective functional currency of the Company, primarily U.S. Dollar. The Company’s 
exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

 Sensitivity analysis          
          
 A 10 percent strengthening / (weakening) of the Pak Rupee against the US Dollar at June 30, 2021 would have 

(decreased) / increased the profit by Rs. 24.42 million (2020: Rs. 441.75 million). This analysis assumes that all 
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and the analysis is performed on the same basis as 
done in prior year.

36.3.2 Interest rate risk          
           
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in market interest rates. Interest rate exposure arises from short and long term borrowings from banks.
 
 At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instrument is:

Rupees US Dollars Rupees US Dollars

(Amounts in ‘000)

2021 2020

2021 2020 2021 2020
Buying/Selling Buying/Selling Buying/Selling Buying/Selling

(Rupees)

Average rates Reporting date rate

US Dollars to PKR 160.10 / 160.47 158.07 / 158.45 157.13 / 157.49 167.98 / 168.35

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year

 Fixed rate instruments      
  Financial liabilities      5,996,602 4,015,300

 Variable rate instruments
  Financial liabilities      6,006,488 14,034,920

Financial assets
Bank balance 219,072 1,394 14,286 85
Trade debts 860,288 5,475 957,076 5,698

Financial liabilities
Trade creditors (1,416,398) (8,993) (4,918,629) (29,217)

Net exposure (337,038) (2,124) (3,947,267) (23,434)

Carrying amount
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 a) Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

  The Company holds various variable rate financial instruments amounting to Rs. 6,006.49 million (2020: 
Rs. 14,034.92 million) exposing the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. A change of 100 basis 
points as at 30 June 2021 would have increased / (decreased) profit after tax and equity for the year by 
Rs. 42.65 million (2020: Rs. 99.65 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular 
foreign currency rates, remain constant.

 b) Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

  The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss. Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect the statement of 
profit or loss.   

36.4  Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

2021

Short term
borrowings

Unappropriated
profit Lease liabilities TotalLong term

financing

(Rupees in ‘000)

Balance as at July 1, 2020  11,675,965  6,579,655   7,121,607   54,853   25,432,080
Changes from financing cash flows      
Repayment of long term loan   -     (1,512,165)  -     -     (1,512,165)
Proceeds from long term loan   -     187,738   -     -     187,738 
Lease rentals paid   -     -     -     (20,326)  (20,326)
Re-assessment / termination of leases   -     -     -     (14,658)  (14,658)
Dividend paid   -     -     (1,304,635)  -     (1,304,635)
Total changes from financing activities   -     (1,324,427)  (1,304,635)  (34,984)  (2,664,046)
Other changes
Interest expense  370,832  441,099   -     -     811,931 
Interest paid   (487,035)  (449,397)  -     2,794   (933,638)
Deferred government grant recognised   -     (14,264)  -     -     (14,264)
Changes in short term borrowings   (4,724,059)  -     -     -     (4,724,059)
Total loan related other changes   (4,840,262)  (22,562)  -     2,794   (4,860,030)
       

  
Total equity related other changes   -     -     7,500,382   -     7,500,382 

Balance as at June 30, 2021   6,835,703  5,232,666   13,317,354   22,663   25,408,386 
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36.5 Other price risk          
          
 Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes 

in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are 
caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial 
instruments traded in the market. The Company has no exposure to price risk.

36.6  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities          
          

 The carrying values of financial assets and financial liabilities reported in the statement of financial position 
approximate their fair values.     

Short term
borrowings

Unappropriated
profit Lease liabilities TotalLong term

financing

(Rupees in ‘000)

Balance as at July 1, 2019  10,307,497  7,465,513   7,240,140   152,996   25,166,146 
Changes from financing cash flows
Repayment of long term loan   -     (1,461,144)  -     -     (1,461,144)
Proceeds from long term loan   -    713,876   -     -     713,876 
Lease rentals paid   -     -     -     (21,083)  (21,083)
Termination of leases   -     -     -     (85,131)  (85,131)
Dividend paid   -     -     (652,905)  -     (652,905)
Total changes from financing activities   -     (747,268)  (652,905)  (106,214)  (1,506,387)
Other changes 
Interest expense  1,532,643  782,164   -     -     2,314,807 
Interest paid   (1,493,360)  (901,666)  -     8,071   (2,386,955)
Deferred government grant recognised   -     (19,088)  -     -     (19,088)
Changes in short term borrowings   1,329,185   -     -     -     1,329,185 
Total loan related other changes   1,368,468   (138,590)  -     8,071   1,237,949 

Total equity related other changes   -     -     534,372   -     534,372 

Balance as at June 30, 2020   11,675,965   6,579,655   7,121,607   54,853   25,432,080 

2020
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37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT          
           
 The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so 

that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong 
capital base to support the sustained development of its businesses. The Company intends to manage its capital 
structure by monitoring return on capital, as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders. The Company 
finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to maintain an 
appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimise risk.

38. MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUES          
           
 Management engages an independent external expert / valuer to carry out valuation of its non-financial assets (i.e. 

Land and Building) and obtains rate from financial institution to value derivative financial instruments. Involvement 
of external valuers is decided by management. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, 
independence and whether professional standards are maintained. 

 When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized 
into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2:  inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
- Level 3:  inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

 As at June 30, 2021, all financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost which is approximate 
to their fair value. The Company measures the Land and Buildings at fair value and all of the resulting fair value 
estimates in relation to Land and Buildings of the Company are included in Level 3.

 If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value 
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy 
as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

36.7 Financial instruments by categories
Note

 Financial assets
 Held at amortised cost
  - Long term deposit with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited  100  100 
   - Trade debts     9  939,845   1,015,744 
   - Trade deposits and margin against shipping guarantee  10  76,773   21,843 
   - Receivable from K-Electric Limited   26,920  39,393 
  - Cash and bank balances   13  292,511   106,196 

         1,336,149   1,183,276 
 Financial liabilities        
 Held at amortised cost        
  - Long term financing     16  5,193,296   6,511,446 
   - Trade and other payables    3,953,450   7,415,744 
   - Accrued mark-up       78,728   223,770 
   - Short term borrowings    22  6,796,345   11,520,404 
   - Contract liabilities     21  1,277,439   1,377,396 
   - Unclaimed dividend        8,798   8,433 

         17,308,056   27,057,193 
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 Management assessed that the fair values of cash & cash equivalents, other receivable, receivables from 
K-Electric, trade deposits, trade debts, short term borrowings, trade and other payables, accrued mark-up, 
contract liabilities and unclaimed dividends  approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short-term 
maturities of these instruments. For long term deposit and long term financing,  management considers that their 
carrying values approximate fair value owing to credit standing of counterparties and interest payable on 
borrowings at market rates. 

39. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES          
        

 The related parties comprise the Holding Company, associated undertakings, directors of the Company, key 
management personnel and staff retirement funds. The Company continues to have a policy whereby transactions 
with related parties are entered into at commercial terms, approved policy and at rate agreed under a contract / 
arrangement / agreement. The contribution to defined contribution plan (provident fund) are made as per the terms 
of employment and contribution to the defined benefit plan (gratuity fund) are made on the basis of latest actuarial 
advice. Remuneration of key management personnel are in accordance with their terms of contractual 
engagements.       

 Opening net book value      5,434,720 4,050,472

 Additions during the year      18,565 1,541,480

 Depreciation for the year      (197,981) (155,733)

 Disposals during the year (at NBV)   (6,973) (1,499)

 Closing net book value      5,248,331 5,434,720

 For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the 
management recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period 
during which the change has occurred. There were no transfers between different levels of fair values mentioned 
above.  

 The following table provides the valuation approach, inputs used and inter-relationship between significant 
unobservable inputs and fair value measurement of the Company's Land and Buildings measured at fair value:

 The fair value of land and buildings is a Level 3 recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the opening 
and closing fair value is provided below:

Assets measured 
at fair value

Date of
Valuation Valuation approach and inputs used

Inter-relationships between
significant unobservable

inputs and fair value
measurement

Revalued property, plant
and equipment
- Land and Building 30 June 2019 

The valuation model is based on price per square 
meter and current replacement cost method 
adjusted for depreciation factor for the existing 
assets in use. In determining the valuations for 
land and buildings, the valuer refers to current 
market conditions, structure, current replacement 
cost, sale prices of comparable land in similar 
location adjusted for differences in key attributes 
such as land size and inquires with numerous 
independent local estate agents / realtors in the 
vicinity to establish the present market value. The 
fair valuation of land and building is considered to 
represent a level 3 valuation based on significant 
non-observable inputs being the location and 
condition of the assets.

The fair values are subject to 
change owing to changes in 
input. However, management 
does not expect material sensitity 
to the fair values arising from the 
non-observable inputs.

A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1

1 7 5



39.2  The following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or had agreements 
and / or arrangements in place during the year: 

 Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the Company. The Company considers its Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial 
Officer, Company Secretary, Non-Executive Directors and departmental heads to be its key management 
personnel. There are no transactions with key management personnel other than their terms of employment / 
entitlement.   

 Other related parties

 Sales   1,366,520 953,922

 Purchases   27,722,541 21,552,257

 Dividend paid   118,433 59,216

 Rental income  39.4 2,438 2,525

 Reimbursment of expenses   1,170 3,913

 Services   67,827 133,760

 
 Key management personnel 
  Remuneration   228,898 230,493

 Staff retirement funds
  Contriution paid   56,211 50,222

 Non-executive directors
  Directors’ fee   9,500 7,525

  Reimbursement of Chairman’s expenses   3,605 2,459

39.1 Transactions with related parties
   Note 2021  2020
     (Rupees in ‘000)

 Holding Company

 Sales   1,032 1,572,505

 Purchases   7,123 210,249

 Rent expense   114,183 47,265

 Shared resources cost   56,834 65,178

 Reimbursement of expenses   13,169 5,072

 Partial manufacturing - Sales   - 6,431

 Corporate, legal, marketing & IT services   16,184 20,165

 Dividend paid   735,167 367,583
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40. ANNUAL PRODUCTION CAPACITY
    2021  2020
     (Metric Tonnes)

 The production capacity at the year end was as follows:

  Galvanising   462,000  462,000 

  Cold rolled steel strip   1,000,000  1,000,000 

  Colour coated   84,000  84,000 

 The actual production for the year was:

  Galvanising    293,598   230,023 

  Cold rolled steel strip    498,037   424,355 

  Colour coated   17,789  21,166  

Name of the Related Party Relationship and percentage of Shareholding

International Industrial Limited Holding Company - 56.33% (2020: 56.33%)
  shareholding

Sumitomo Corporation (incorporated in Japan) Associated Company - 9.08% (2020: 9.08%) 
  shareholding

Pakistan Cables Limited Associated Company due to common directorship

German Pakistan Chamber of Commerce and Industry Associated Entity due to common directorship

Intermark (Private) Limited Associated Company due to common directorship

Employers’ Federation of Pakistan Associated Company due to common directorship

Amir Sultan Chinoy Foundation Associated Entity due to common directorship

Habib University Foundation Associated Entity due to common directorship

Karwan-e-Hayat Associated Entity due to common directorship

Landhi Association of Trade & Industry Associated Entity due to common directorship

Jubilee Life Insurance Company Limited Associated Company due to common directorship

Jubilee General Insurance Company Limited Associated Company due to common directorship

Beaumont Plaza Owners / Occupants Welfare Association Associated Entity due to common directorship

IIL Australia PTY Limited (incorporated in Australia) Associated Company due to common directorship

39.3  Outstanding balances with related parties have been separately disclosed in trade debts, trade and other payables 
and advances, deposits and prepayments respectively. These are settled in ordinary course of business. 

39.4 Rental income is recognized on straight line basis over the term of the respective lease agreement.
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 Domestic sales      57,943,785 39,088,479
 Exports sales      11,852,455 8,993,458

        69,796,240 48,081,937

 Total employees of the Company at the year end   693 692

 Average employees of the Company during the year   686 702

40.1 The name-plate capacities of the plants are determined based on a certain product mix. The actual production mix 
is different. Actual production was as per market demand. 

41. OPERATING SEGMENT          
           
41.1  These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.

41.2  Revenue from sales of steel products represents 99.26% (2020: 98.77%) of total revenue whereas remaining 
represents revenue from sale of surplus electricity to K-Electric Limited (KE). The Company does not consider sale 
of electricity to KE as separate reportable segment as the power plant of the Company is installed primarily to 
supply power to its Galvanizing plant and Cold Rolling plant and currently any excess electricity is sold to KE. 

41.3 All non-current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2021 are located in Pakistan.

41.4 85.31% (2020: 83.83%) of gross sales of steel are domestic sales whereas 14.69% (2020: 16.17%) of sales are 
export / foreign sales. 

41.5 Geographic Information          
           
 The Company's net revenue from external customers by geographical location is disclosed in note 24.2. 

43.  NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

 The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on August 24, 2021 has proposed a final cash 
dividend of Rs. 7 per share (2020: Nil) amounting to Rs. 3,045 million (2020: Nil ) for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
The approval of the members of the Company for the dividend shall be obtained at the Annual General Meeting to 
be held on September 29, 2021. The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 do not include the 
effect of the proposed final cash dividend  which will be accounted for in the year ending June 30, 2022.

44. CORRESPONDING FIGURES          
           
 Comparative information has been reclassified and re-arranged in these financial statements, wherever 

necessary, to facilitate comparison and to confirm with presentation in the current period, having insignificant 
impact.        

41.6  Management considers that revenue from its ordinary activities are shariah compliant.

42. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES      
       
 The detail of number of employees are as follows: 

Number of employees
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45. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE 

 These financial statements were authorised for issue on  August 24, 2021 by the Board of Directors of the 
Company. 

Nihal Cassim
Director & Chairman

Board Audit Committee

Mujtaba Hussain
Chief Financial

Officer

Yousuf H. Mirza
Chief Executive

Officer
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